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         1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

         2           MR. WARDEN:  GOOD AFTERNOON, YOUR HONOR.

         3  MICROSOFT CALLS AS ITS NEXT WITNESS, MR. PAUL MARITZ.

         4            PAUL MARITZ, DEFENDANT WITNESS, SWORN

         5                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

         6  BY MR. WARDEN:

         7  Q.   MR. MARITZ, DO YOU HAVE BEFORE YOU A COPY OF YOUR

         8  WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY AS FILED IN THIS COURT?

         9  A.   I DO.

        10  Q.   DO YOU AFFIRM IT TO BE YOUR TRUTHFUL TESTIMONY?

        11  A.   I DO.

        12  Q.   YOUR WRITTEN TESTIMONY MAKES REFERENCE TO THREE

        13  DEMONSTRATIONS CONTAINED ON A SINGLE TAPE, WHICH HAVE BEEN

        14  MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION AS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2164.

        15           ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH THE CONTENTS OF THAT TAPE?

        16  A.   I AM, SIR.

        17  Q.   WAS IT PREPARED AT YOUR INSTRUCTION AND UNDER YOUR

        18  SUPERVISION?

        19  A.   YES.

        20           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, THE PLAINTIFFS HAVE

        21  FILED A MOTION ADDRESSED TO THIS TAPE, I THINK THE

        22  FOUNDATION QUESTION JUST ASKED AND ANSWERED.  THE MOTION

        23  IS DEVOTED TO MR. ALLCHIN AND MR. MARITZ.  I THINK I HAVE

        24  DEALT WITH IT AS TO MR. MARITZ.  WE WILL FILE A WRITTEN

        25  RESPONSE PROMPTLY AS TO MR. ALLCHIN, WHO IS EXPECTED TO
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         1  TESTIFY LATER THIS WEEK.

         2           THE DEMONSTRATION TAPE THAT ACCOMPANIES

         3  MR. MARITZ'S TESTIMONY IS, IN TOTO, TEN MINUTES LONG, AND

         4  IT CONSISTS OF THREE SEPARATE DEMONSTRATIONS.

         5           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  MR. BOIES?

         6           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, WE WOULD OBJECT TO THE

         7  TAPE TO THE EXTENT IT IS OFFERED FOR THE TRUTH OF THE

         8  MATTERS ASSERTED, AND TO THE EXTENT IT IS SIMPLY OTHER

         9  THAN A TECHNICAL DEMONSTRATION.  MR. MARITZ IS NOT THE

        10  PERSON CONDUCTING WHATEVER GOES ON IN THE TAPE.  THERE ARE

        11  A NUMBER OF ASSERTIONS, AND INCLUDING ASSERTION OF FACT

        12  MADE BY THE PERSONS GIVING UNSWORN STATEMENTS AND

        13  NONSUBJECT TO CROSS-EXAMINATION STATEMENTS ON THE TAPE.

        14           SO, TO THE EXTENT THE TAPE IS BEING OFFERED FOR

        15  THE TRUTH OF THE MATTERS ASSERTED AND IT GOES BEYOND

        16  SIMPLY A TECHNICAL DEMONSTRATION, WE WOULD OBJECT TO IT.

        17           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  DO YOU WANT TO BE HEARD?

        18           MR. WARDEN:  I DO WANT TO SAY IT'S OFFERED FOR

        19  THE TRUTH STATED THEREIN, AND HE COULD BE CROSS-EXAMINED

        20  ON THEM.

        21           THE COURT:  OKAY.  THE MOTION IN LIMINE IS

        22  DENIED.  I WILL ADMIT IT FOR SUCH WEIGHT AS I ULTIMATELY

        23  DETERMINE TO GIVE IT OR SUBJECT TO A MOTION TO STRIKE IF

        24  THAT APPEARS TO BE APPROPRIATE.  I UNDERSTAND THAT TO THE

        25  EXTENT IT IS BEING VOUCHED FOR BY MR. MARITZ RATHER THAN
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         1  MR. ALLCHIN, MR. MARITZ IS HERE.

         2           MR. WARDEN:  THAT'S CORRECT.  THIS TAPE IS

         3  REFERRED TO IN MR. MARITZ'S DIRECT TESTIMONY.

         4           THE COURT:  AND MR. ALLCHIN'S.

         5           MR. WARDEN:  OH, THERE'S A SEPARATE DEMONSTRATION

         6  IN MR. ALLCHIN'S.

         7           THE COURT:  MR. MARITZ IS HERE TO VOUCH FOR IT,

         8  TO BE EXAMINED WITH RESPECT TO IT?

         9           MR. WARDEN:  THAT'S CORRECT, YOUR HONOR.

        10           THE COURT:  THE MOTION IN LIMINE IS DENIED, AND

        11  DEFENDANT'S 2164 IS ADMITTED.

        12                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2164 WAS

        13                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        14           MR. WARDEN:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

        15           AND BEFORE GOING TO THE TAPE, I WOULD LIKE TO

        16  OFFER THOSE OF THE EXHIBITS TO MR. MARITZ'S DIRECT

        17  TESTIMONY THAT ARE CONTAINED IN THE EXHIBIT VOLUME THAT'S

        18  BEEN FILED WITH IT THAT HAVE NOT ALREADY BEEN ADMITTED

        19  INTO EVIDENCE.  IN OTHER WORDS, SOME OF THE ONES HE REFERS

        20  TO ARE IN EVIDENCE.

        21           AND THOSE ARE DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 725, WHICH IS

        22  AN AUGUST 15, 1996, E-MAIL FROM MR. MARITZ TO RICH SCHELL

        23  AT NETSCAPE.

        24           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2186, A DECEMBER 1, 1997,

        25  INTERVIEW WITH MR. BARKSDALE PUBLISHED IN CHIEF EXECUTIVE.
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         1           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2243, A ONE-PAGE ARTICLE BY

         2  TIM BERNERS-LEE ENTITLED "THE WORLD WIDE WEB:  A VERY

         3  SHORT PERSONAL HISTORY," PRINTED OFF A WEB SITE, THAT IS,

         4  MR. BERNERS-LEE'S WEB SITE, ON JANUARY 5, 1999.

         5           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2244, A NETSCAPE PRESS

         6  RELEASE DATED OCTOBER 15, 1996, AND PRINTED ON JANUARY 5,

         7  1999, FROM NETSCAPE'S WEB SITE.

         8           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2245, A LETTER DATED JULY 8,

         9  1995, FROM BILL GATES TO JOHN SCULLY OF APPLE.

        10           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2246, A LETTER DATED JULY 29,

        11  1995, FROM BILL GATES TO JOHN SCULLY AGAIN.

        12           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2247, AN ARTICLE PUBLISHED IN

        13  THE JULY-AUGUST 1991 HARVARD BUSINESS REVIEW ENTITLED "THE

        14  COMPUTER LISTS COMPUTER COMPANY."

        15           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2248, A REPORT BY MERRILL

        16  LYNCH DATED SEPTEMBER 14, 1998, ENTITLED "TECHNOLOGY

        17  INSIGHTS."

        18           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2249, AN ARTICLE DATED JULY

        19  21, 1998, ON THE C/NET WEB SITE ENTITLED "LINUX GAINING

        20  RESPECT."

        21           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2250, AN ARTICLE DATED

        22  OCTOBER 1, 1998, AND PUBLISHED IN TECHWEB, ENTITLED

        23  "NETSCAPE'S ANDREESSEN: LINUX BUZZ `EXTREMELY HOT.'"

        24           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2251, AN IBM STRATEGY

        25  DOCUMENT DATED JULY 30, 1998, ENTITLED "NETWORK COMPUTING
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         1  SOFTWARE DIVISION STRATEGY POSTED ON THE INTERNET" AT IBM,

         2  ONE OF IBM'S WEB SITES.

         3           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2252, E-MAIL FROM GREG MAFFEI

         4  TO BILL GATES, DATED JULY 21, 1997.

         5           DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2253, A LETTER DATED JANUARY

         6  16, 1995, FROM MICHAEL SPINDLER, THEN THE PRESIDENT AND

         7  CEO OF APPLE, TO BILL GATES.

         8           AND DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2254, AN E-MAIL FROM BILL

         9  GATES TO RICHARD FADE, DATED NOVEMBER 16, 1996.

        10           I'M ADVISED THAT THE REMAINDER OF THE EXHIBITS IN

        11  THIS BINDER HAVE ALREADY BEEN ADMITTED.

        12           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

        13           MR. BOIES:  MAY I INQUIRE, YOUR HONOR, WHETHER

        14  THESE ARE ALL BEING OFFERED FOR TRUTH OF THE MATTERS

        15  ASSERTED?

        16           MR. WARDEN:  WELL, IF YOU HAVE ANY PARTICULAR

        17  ONE, YES, UNLESS THERE IS SOME YOU HAVE A PROBLEM WITH,

        18  AND THEN WE WILL DISCUSS IT.

        19           MR. BOIES:  I HAVE NO PROBLEM WITH EXHIBIT 725,

        20  2186, 2247.

        21           THERE IS A PARTICULAR PROBLEM WITH RESPECT TO

        22  EXHIBIT 2251, THAT I THINK MR. WARDEN MAY HAVE MISSPOKE

        23  WHEN HE SAID HE HAD TAKEN IT OFF THE IBM WEB SITE.  I DO

        24  NOT BELIEVE IT IS ACCURATE.

        25           MR. WARDEN:  OKAY.  LET ME TAKE A LOOK AT THAT.
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         1           I'M SORRY, IF I WAS TO UNDERSTOOD TO SAY THIS WAS

         2  TAKEN FROM AN IBM WEB SITE, THAT IS NOT SO.  IT IS, I'M

         3  ADVISED, POSTED ON THE INTERNET AT

         4  "HTTP://WWWSCRIPTING.COM/MIS/IBMSTRATEGY.HTML."

         5           MR. BOIES:  THAT IS NOT AN IBM WEB SITE.  THEY

         6  MADE EFFORTS TO AUTHENTICATE WITH IBM WITNESSES AND THEY

         7  HAVE NOT SUCCEEDED IN AUTHENTICATING THE DOCUMENT.  SO,

         8  WITH RESPECT TO THAT DOCUMENT THERE IS AN AUTHENTICITY

         9  ISSUE, AND I OBJECT TO IT ON THAT GROUND.

        10           WITH RESPECT TO ALL OF THE REST OF THE DOCUMENTS

        11  EXCEPT FOR 2252, I OBJECT TO THE EXTENT THEY ARE OFFERED

        12  FOR THE TRUTH OF THE MATTERS ASSERTED.  AND WITH RESPECT

        13  TO 2252, I HAVE GOT TO ASK MR. WARDEN TO TELL ME AGAIN

        14  WHAT THAT WAS.

        15           MR. WARDEN:  THAT'S AN E-MAIL FROM--

        16           THE COURT:  SOMEBODY TO GATES.

        17           MR. WARDEN:  MAFFEI.

        18           MR. BOIES:  IS MAFFEI A WITNESS?

        19           MR. WARDEN:  NO, HE'S NOT A WITNESS.

        20           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, I WOULD OBJECT TO THAT AS

        21  WELL.  IT HAS NOT BEEN AUTHENTICATED.  IT'S NOT BEEN USED

        22  IN THE DEPOSITION OF MR. MAFFEI, AND HE IS NOT A WITNESS.

        23           MR. WARDEN:  WELL, AS TO 2252, IT'S A BUSINESS

        24  RECORD.

        25           THE COURT:  OF WHOM?
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         1           MR. WARDEN:  OF MICROSOFT.  IT'S A BUSINESS

         2  RECORD OF MICROSOFT.

         3           THE COURT:  IT MAY HAVE BEEN IN THE FILES, BUT IS

         4  IT A RECORD OF MICROSOFT'S?

         5           MR. WARDEN:  I THINK IT IS.  IF YOUR HONOR TAKES

         6  A LOOK AT IT, QUITE FRANKLY, IT'S VERY MUCH LIKE EVERY

         7  OTHER DOCUMENT THAT'S OFFERED IN THIS CASE.  IT'S A REPORT

         8  FROM MR. MAFFEI TO BILL GATES.

         9           THE COURT:  WHO IS THE AUTHOR?

        10           MR. WARDEN:  THE CFO OF MICROSOFT, CHIEF

        11  FINANCIAL OFFICER OF MICROSOFT.

        12           THE COURT:  IT'S AN INTRA-MICROSOFT?

        13           MR. WARDEN:  IT'S AN INTRA-MICROSOFT MEMORANDUM,

        14  AND IT'S MEMORANDUM OF A MEETING THAT MR. MAFFEI HAD WITH

        15  STEVE JOBS.

        16           WITH RESPECT TO 2251, I WILL WITHDRAW THE OFFER,

        17  PENDING OUR--MY ASCERTAINING EXACTLY WHAT THE STATUS OF

        18  AUTHENTICATION OF THAT DOCUMENT IS.

        19           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  I WILL ADMIT DEFENDANT'S

        20  725, 2186, 2243, 2244, 2245, 2246, 2247, 2248, 2249 AND

        21  2250.  2251 IS WITHDRAWN, AND I WILL ADMIT 2252, 53, AND

        22  54, AND WILL DETERMINE AT THE APPROPRIATE TIME SUCH WEIGHT

        23  AS THEY ARE TO BE GIVEN.

        24                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NOS. 725,

        25                          2186, 2243, 2244, 2245, 2246,
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         1                          2247, 2248, 2249, 2250, 2252,

         2                          2253, 2254 WERE ADMITTED INTO

         3                          EVIDENCE.)

         4           MR. WARDEN:  OKAY, YOUR HONOR.  AT THIS TIME I

         5  WOULD LIKE TO PLAY FOR THE COURT THE VIDEOTAPE,

         6  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2164, AS I SAID.  THERE ARE THREE

         7  SUBJECTS COVERED.  THE FIRST IS REFERRED TO AT PARAGRAPH

         8  223 OF MR. MARITZ'S WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY, AND THAT'S

         9  ON PAGES 82 AND 83.  AND THIS HAS TO DO WITH APPLICATIONS

        10  THAT RUN ON CALDERA'S OPENLINUX OPERATING SYSTEM.

        11           (VIDEOTAPE PLAYED.)

        12           MR. WARDEN:  THOSE ARE THE THREE SUBJECTS ON THE

        13  FIRST SCREEN.  WE ARE GOING TO HAVE THE FIRST ONE.

        14           (VIDEOTAPED PLAYED.)

        15                "HELLO.  MY NAME IS VINOD VALLOPPIL, AND I'M

        16           A PROGRAM MANAGER IN THE PERSONA AND BUSINESS

        17           SYSTEMS GROUP AT MICROSOFT.  THIS IS A

        18           DEMONSTRATION OF THE CALDERA OPENLINUX OPERATING

        19           SYSTEM, A NON-MICROSOFT OPERATING SYSTEM FOR

        20           PERSONAL COMPUTERS.  THE DEMONSTRATION WILL SHOW

        21           THAT CALDERA'S OPERATING SYSTEM PROVIDES

        22           EFFECTIVE FUNCTIONALITY FOR TYPICAL END USERS.

        23                I HAVE INSTALLED A COPY OF CALDERA'S

        24           OPERATING SYSTEM ON THIS STANDARD PERSONAL

        25           COMPUTER AND ACCEPTED ALL DEFAULT SETTINGS AS
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         1           WELL AS INSTALLED A SET OF END-USER APPLICATIONS

         2           BUNDLED WITH CALDERA'S OPERATING SYSTEM.

         3                I'M CURRENTLY DEMONSTRATING CALDERA'S

         4           OPERATING SYSTEMS' GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACE.  THE

         5           GRAPHICAL USER INTERFACE, OR GUI FOR SHORT, AS

         6           PROVIDED BY CALDERA TO INSURE THAT THE OPERATING

         7           SYSTEM IS EASY TO USE AND IS COMPETITIVE WITH

         8           MICROSOFT'S WINDOWS OFFERING.

         9                A QUICK TOUR OF THE SCREEN DEMONSTRATES THAT

        10           IN MANY RESPECTS, CALDERA'S OPERATING SYSTEM

        11           LOOKS JUST LIKE MICROSOFT WINDOWS.  CALDERA'S

        12           OPERATING SYSTEM HAD A START MENU AT THE BOTTOM

        13           OF THE SCREEN LISTING INSTALLED PROGRAMS AND

        14           MAKING IT VERY EASY TO SELECT AND RUN THESE

        15           PROGRAMS; A TASK BAR AT THE TOP OF THE SCREEN

        16           LISTING PROGRAMS THAT ARE CURRENTLY RUNNING ON

        17           THE COMPUTER; AND FINALLY, AN ARRAY OF ICONS ON

        18           THE UPPER LEFT PORTION OF THE SCREEN PROVIDING

        19           USERS A QUICK WAY TO RUN PROGRAMS OR ACCESS

        20           INFORMATION ON THEIR HARD DISK.

        21                LIKE MICROSOFT WINDOWS, CALDERA'S OPERATING

        22           SYSTEM PROVIDES A SERIES OF ACCESSORY

        23           APPLICATIONS FOR CONSUMERS' DAILY ACTIVITIES SUCH

        24           AS EDITING DOCUMENTS AND WRITING E-MAIL.  FOR

        25           EXAMPLE, I WILL EDIT A QUICK DOCUMENT, TYPING
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         1           `THIS IS A TEST.'

         2                I WILL ALSO CREATE A QUICK SAMPLE E-MAIL

         3           MESSAGE.

         4                CALDERA'S OPERATING SYSTEM HAS A GROWING

         5           LIST OF THIRD-PARTY APPLICATION SUPPORT AND

         6           CORPORATE BACKING, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO,

         7           COMPANIES SUCH AS NETSCAPE, INTEL, ORACLE, SUN,

         8           AND IBM.

         9                IN ORDER TO CREATE A MORE COMPETITIVE

        10           OFFERING TO WINDOWS, CALDERA'S OPENLINUX

        11           OPERATING SYSTEM, IN PARTICULAR, BUNDLES A NUMBER

        12           OF THESE THIRD-PARTY PROGRAMS.

        13                A CRITICAL CLASS OF APPLICATIONS WHICH ARE

        14           VERY POPULAR WITH CUSTOMERS IS THE OFFICE

        15           PRODUCTIVITY SUITE.  MICROSOFT'S OFFERING IN THIS

        16           CATEGORY IS MICROSOFT OFFICE.  OTHER COMPETITORS

        17           TO MICROSOFT OFFICE WHO BUILD ON THE WINDOWS

        18           PLATFORM INCLUDE COREL, IBM, AND STAR DIVISION OF

        19           GERMANY.

        20                CALDERA'S BUNDLES STAR DIVISION'S

        21           PRODUCTIVITY SUITE WITH THEIR OPERATING SYSTEM.

        22           IN THIS CASE, I HAVE STAR OFFICE FOR CALDERA'S

        23           OPERATING SYSTEM ON SCREEN.  LIKE MICROSOFT'S

        24           POPULAR OFFICE SUITE, STAR OFFICE PROVIDES AN

        25           INTEGRATED SUITE OF APPLICATIONS INCLUDING WORD
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         1           PROCESSING LIKE MICROSOFT WORD, A SPREADSHEET

         2           PROGRAM LIKE MICROSOFT EXCEL, AND A PRESENTATION

         3           GRAPHICS PROGRAM LIKE MICROSOFT'S POWERPOINT.

         4                STAR OFFICES'S APPLICATIONS IN THIS CATEGORY

         5           NOT ONLY PROVIDE FULL-FEATURED PRODUCTS, BUT

         6           THEY'RE ALSO INTEROPERABLE WITH POPULAR WINDOWS

         7           PRODUCTS.  FOR EXAMPLE, I WILL NOW IMPORT A

         8           RICHLY FORMATTED DOCUMENT CREATED IN MICROSOFT

         9           WORD INTO STAR OFFICE RUNNING ON CALDERA'S

        10           OPERATING SYSTEM.  NOTICE THAT NOT ONLY THE TEXT

        11           OF THE DOCUMENT WAS ABLE TO BE IMPORTED INTO STAR

        12           OFFICE, BUT ALSO FEATURES SUCH AS RICHLY

        13           FORMATTED SECTION HEADINGS--IN THIS CASE, THE

        14           BLUE BOLD-FACED TEXT WITH THE LINE ABOVE IT--AND

        15           EMBEDDED GRAPHICS, THE CIRCLE WITH THE WORD

        16           "PRINTER" INSIDE OF IT.

        17                LIKE CALDERA'S GRAPHICAL INTERFACE, STAR

        18           OFFICE ALSO BENEFITS STRONGLY FROM CUSTOMERS'

        19           EXPERIENCE WITH MICROSOFT PRODUCTS.  THE STAR

        20           OFFICE PROGRAMS HAVE BEEN DESIGNED TO LOOK LIKE,

        21           AND WORK LIKE, MICROSOFT OFFICE.  AS JUST ONE

        22           EXAMPLE, DOCUMENT FORMATTING FEATURES SUCH AS

        23           BOLD-FACE TYPE, UNDERLINE TYPE, AND ITALICS ARE

        24           QUICKLY AND EASILY AVAILABLE TO THE END USER WITH

        25           JUST A SINGLE MOUSE CLICK ON BUTTONS THAT LOOK
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         1           VERY MUCH LIKE AND ARE LOCATED ON A TOOLBAR JUST

         2           LIKE THE BUTTONS THAT PROVIDE THESE FEATURES IN

         3           MICROSOFT OFFICE.

         4                IN SUMMARY, I HAVE DEMONSTRATED THAT

         5           CALDERA'S OPERATING SYSTEM IS:  FIRST, POWERFUL

         6           AND EASY TO USE; SECOND, THAT THERE ARE

         7           SIGNIFICANT THIRD-PARTY SUPPORT IN BOTH SOFTWARE

         8           AND HARDWARE COMPANIES; AND FINALLY, THAT

         9           CALDERA'S PRODUCT BUNDLES A STRONG OFFICE

        10           PRODUCTIVITY SUITE FROM STAR DIVISION WHICH IS

        11           NOT ONLY INTEROPERABLE WITH MICROSOFT PRODUCTS,

        12           BUT IS ALSO DESIGNED TO WORK AND LOOK LIKE

        13           MICROSOFT PRODUCTS SO THAT USERS OF THESE

        14           PRODUCTS WILL BE COMFORTABLE AND PRODUCTIVE USING

        15           THESE PROGRAMS.

        16                THIS CONCLUDES THE DEMONSTRATION OF CALDERA

        17           OPENLINUX OPERATING SYSTEM VERSION 1.3."

        18           MR. WARDEN:  YOUR HONOR, THE NEXT SUBJECT SHOULD

        19  BE, IF IT'S IN THE RIGHT ORDER ON THE TAPE, NETWORK

        20  COMPUTER DEVICES WHICH ARE REFERRED TO AT PAGE 99,

        21  PARAGRAPH 261, THE LAST SENTENCE OF THAT PARAGRAPH.

        22           THE COURT:  OKAY.

        23           MR. WARDEN:  IN THE EVENT THEY'RE NOT IN THE

        24  RIGHT ORDER, THE THIRD DEMO HAS TO DO WITH DEVICES

        25  ENABLING INTERNET ACCESS FROM TELEVISION SETS, AND THAT'S
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         1  DISCUSSED IN PARAGRAPH 274 ON PAGES 103 AND 104.

         2           (VIDEOTAPE PLAYED.)

         3                "--AND NEW COMPUTING PLATFORMS THAT ARE

         4           AVAILABLE NOW OR WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE NEAR

         5           FUTURE."

         6                "HI, I'M STEVEN PROBIN, PRESIDENT AND

         7           COFOUNDER OF WEBTV NETWORKS.  I'M HERE TO

         8           DEMONSTRATE SOME OF THE FEATURES OF THE WEBTV

         9           INTERNET RECEIVER.

        10                THIS IS A WEBTV INTERNET RECEIVER.  IT'S

        11           CURRENTLY AVAILABLE IN THE UNITED STATES FROM

        12           SONY, PHILLIPS, MITSUBISHI AND SAMSUNG.  WHEN YOU

        13           TURN IT ON, IT TAKES YOU RIGHT TO THE INTERNET

        14           AUTOMATICALLY WITH A FULL MAIL SYSTEM; FAVORITES

        15           FOR LIKE YOUR FAVORITE SITES ON THE INTERNET;

        16           EXPLORE AS A DIRECTORY; SEARCH, WE HAVE SEARCH

        17           FUNCTION; AND THEN WE ALWAYS FEATURE A COUPLE OF

        18           SITES.  WE HAVE SHOPPING GUIDE HERE, WE ARE

        19           TALKING ABOUT MSNBC.  AND WE ALSO HAVE MY WEBTV,

        20           WHICH IS A PERSONALIZED SERVICE THAT TELLS YOU

        21           WHAT THE LOCAL WEATHER IS, TELLS YOU STOCK

        22           INFORMATION, SPORTS AND NEWS.

        23                LET ME SHOW YOU SOME OF THE MAIL CAPABILITY.

        24           IF YOU CLICK ON THE MAIL ICON, IT TAKES YOU TO A

        25           MAIL LIST JUST AS YOU MIGHT HAVE ON A PC, AND
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         1           IT'S COMPATIBLE WITH STANDARD PC MAIL INCLUDING

         2           NOT JUST TEXT BUT MULTIMEDIA CAPABILITY.

         3                IF WE THEN TAKE YOU TO YOU SHOW AN EXAMPLE

         4           OF WEB-BROWSING CAPABILITY, THIS IS ESPN.COM.

         5           NOW, ESPN.COM CERTAINLY WASN'T A SITE THAT WAS

         6           DESIGNED FOR TELEVISION.  IT WAS DESIGNED FOR

         7           PC'S.  BUT THE SPECIAL TECHNOLOGY IN WEBTV,

         8           FIRST, WILL LAY OUT THE PAGE SO IT FITS WITHIN

         9           THE BORDERS OF A TV SCREEN, AND WILL ALSO ENHANCE

        10           AND STABILIZE THE IMAGE SO IT LOOKS SHARP ON A TV

        11           SCREEN.

        12                IF I BRING UP A TV WINDOW, I CAN WATCH

        13           TELEVISION WHILE I'M BROWSING THE WEB.  AND, IN

        14           FACT, I CAN WATCH FULL-SCREEN TV IF I LIKE, AND

        15           THEN I HAVE WITH IT PROGRAM INFORMATION THAT

        16           TELLS US WHAT THE TV SHOW IS WHILE I'M WATCHING

        17           IT.  AND, IN FACT, I COULD GO FULL SCREEN AND I

        18           STILL CAN SEE THE CHANNEL INFORMATION AS I'M

        19           CHANGING CHANNELS.

        20                THIS IS THE WEBTV INTERNET TERMINAL.  IT

        21           PROVIDES ALL OF THE ONLINE FUNCTIONALITY THAT YOU

        22           JUST SAW IN THE DEMO.  AS YOU COULD SEE, IT'S

        23           VERY SIMPLE INSIDE WITH 112 MEGAHERTZ MIPS

        24           R-4000, TWO MEGABYTES OF RAM, AND A CUSTOM CHIP.

        25           WE HAVE WORKING HARDWARE, SOFTWARE AND NETWORK
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         1           SIX MONTHS AFTER OUR FIRST ROUND OF

         2           ONE-AND-A-HALF MILLION DOLLARS OF FINANCING.

         3           THIS WAS IN THE MARKET ONE YEAR AFTER THAT

         4           FINANCING.

         5                THE WEBTV-PLUS INTERNET RECEIVER WAS

         6           INTRODUCED 14 MONTHS AFTER THAT, LARGELY FUNDED

         7           BY VENTURE CAPITAL FINANCING.  THIS IS 166

         8           MEGAHERTZ CPU, EIGHT MEGABYTES OF RAM, AND A

         9           CUSTOM CHIP THAT DOES ALL THE VIDEO EFFECTS AND

        10           ALL THE CAPABILITY.

        11                BOTH OF THESE SYSTEMS ARE FAR MORE CAPABLE

        12           THAN ANY COMPUTER WAS EVEN JUST TWO OR THREE

        13           YEARS AGO.  AND YET, YOU CAN SEE, THEY'RE

        14           AVAILABLE FOR $99, $199, RESPECTIVELY.

        15                SO, THANK YOU VERY MUCH.  THAT WAS A DEMO OF

        16           THE WEB TV INTERNET RECEIVER."

        17           MR. WARDEN:  NOW THE NETWORK COMPUTER.

        18           (VIDEOTAPE PLAYED.)

        19                "THIS IS A DEMONSTRATION OF NETWORK

        20           COMPUTERS, INCLUDING THE IBM NETWORK STATION 1000

        21           AS WELL AS NETWORK COMPUTERS FROM THIRD PARTIES.

        22           THE IBM NETWORK STATION 1000 IS A NON-MICROSOFT

        23           COMPUTING PLATFORM THAT LEVERAGES THE RECENT

        24           UBIQUITY IN NETWORKING.  THIS DEMONSTRATION WILL

        25           SHOW THAT THE NETWORK STATION HAS COMPARABLE
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         1           POWER AND PERFORMANCE TO THE TRADITIONAL PERSONAL

         2           COMPUTER RUNNING MICROSOFT SOFTWARE.

         3                THE IBM NETWORK STATION 1000 IS POWERED BY A

         4           200 MEGAHERTZ POWER PC PROCESSOR DEVELOPED BY

         5           IBM.

         6                IN ADDITION TO THE CENTRAL PROCESSOR, THE

         7           NETWORK STATION 1000 ALSO SUPPORTS VERY HIGH

         8           RESOLUTION VGA GRAPHICS AND HIGH-QUALITY SOUND.

         9                THIS NETWORK STATION ALSO CONTAINS 64

        10           MEGABYTES OF MEMORY AND WAS PURCHASED FOR ROUGHLY

        11           $1,000.

        12                THE NETWORK STATION LEVERAGES STANDARD

        13           PERSONAL COMPUTER HARDWARE COMPONENTS.  FOR

        14           EXAMPLE, BY USING STANDARDIZED CONNECTORS, I CAN

        15           PLUG IN A PC KEYBOARD, MOUSE, MONITOR, PRINTER,

        16           AND NETWORKING INTO THE NETWORK STATION.

        17                I'M CURRENTLY DEMONSTRATING THE INITIAL

        18           STARTUP SCREEN PROVIDED BY THE NETWORK STATION

        19           1000.  THIS STARTUP SCREEN PRESENTS A LIST OF

        20           APPLICATIONS AVAILABLE TO THE USER ON THIS

        21           NETWORK STATION SUCH AS 5250 EMULATION, A 3270

        22           EMULATOR, AND A WEB BROWSER.

        23                IN PARTICULAR, NOTICE THE BUILT-IN WEB

        24           BROWSER WHICH IS A STANDARD PART OF THIS

        25           COMPUTER.
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         1                I CAN USE THIS BUILT-IN WEB BROWSER TO VIEW

         2           ANY SITE ON THE INTERNET.  FOR EXAMPLE, LET'S GO

         3           TO IBM'S HOME PAGE.

         4                IN SUMMARY, I HAVE DEMONSTRATED THE IBM

         5           NETWORK STATION 1000 COMPUTER WHICH CONTAINS

         6           HIGH-PERFORMANCE HARDWARE AND DOES NOT USE ANY

         7           MICROSOFT SOFTWARE.

         8                ADDITIONALLY, I HAVE DEMONSTRATED THAT THE

         9           IBM NETWORK STATION HAS A BUILT-IN WEB BROWSER.

        10                IN ADDITION TO IBM'S NETWORK COMPUTER,

        11           SIMILAR DEVICES ARE ALSO AVAILABLE FROM MANY

        12           THIRD PARTIES, INCLUDING NETEER, TECHTRONICS,

        13           WEISS, CYREX'S WEBPAD PRODUCT, AND ALKATEL'S

        14           WEBPHONE PROTOTYPE.

        15                ALL OF THESE DEVICES WERE RECENTLY EXHIBITED

        16           AT COMDEX, A LARGE COMPUTER CONVENTION.

        17                THIS CONCLUDES THE DEMONSTRATION OF A

        18           NETWORK COMPUTER.  THANK YOU."

        19           MR. WARDEN:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.  YOUR

        20  WITNESS, MR. BOIES.

        21           MR. BOIES:  THANK YOU.

        22                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

        23  BY MR. BOIES:

        24  Q.   GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. MARITZ.

        25  A.   GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. BOIES.
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         1  Q.   YOU SAW THAT DEMONSTRATION OF THE CALDERA OPERATING

         2  SYSTEM.

         3           HOW MANY APPLICATIONS ARE AVAILABLE FOR THE

         4  CALDERA OPENLINUX OPERATING SYSTEM?

         5  A.   I DON'T HAVE AN EXACT COUNT ON THEM.  AS WE POINTED

         6  OUT, THERE ARE SEVERAL COMPANIES THAT ARE SHIPPING

         7  APPLICATIONS IN THE BOX, AND THERE IS ACTUALLY A LARGE

         8  MOVEMENT IN THE OPEN SOFTWARE COMMUNITY TO ACTUALLY

         9  DEVELOP THEIR OWN APPLICATIONS FOR THE LINUX PLATFORM.

        10  Q.   DO YOU KNOW APPROXIMATELY HOW MANY APPLICATIONS ARE

        11  AVAILABLE FOR THE CALDERA OPENLINUX OPERATING SYSTEM?

        12  A.   I DON'T HAVE AN EXACT COUNT ON THE NUMBER.

        13  Q.   I'M NOT ASKING FOR AN EXACT COUNT.  DO YOU HAVE AN

        14  APPROXIMATE NUMBER?

        15  A.   I WOULD ESTIMATE THAT SINCE IT'S A FORM OF UNIX AND

        16  CAN RUN ALL OF UNIX'S APPLICATION SOFTWARE BASE, THAT IT

        17  WOULD PROBABLY BE SEVERAL THOUSAND.

        18  Q.   HOW MANY APPLICATIONS ARE AVAILABLE FOR WINDOWS?

        19  A.   FOR WINDOWS?  AGAIN, IT'S IN THE THOUSANDS.

        20  Q.   IN THE THOUSANDS?

        21  A.   CORRECT.

        22  Q.   CAN YOU BE ANY MORE PARTICULAR THAN JUST SAYING "IN

        23  THE THOUSANDS"?  IS IT IN THE TENS OF THOUSANDS?

        24  A.   IT MAY BE.  AS DR. SCHMALENSEE TESTIFIED, THE

        25  CRITICAL THING HERE IS NOT THE TOTAL NUMBER OF
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         1  APPLICATIONS THAT ARE AVAILABLE BUT THE KEY APPLICATIONS

         2  AND THE QUALITY OF APPLICATIONS THAT ARE AVAILABLE.

         3  Q.   NOW, MR. MARITZ, WINDOWS IS WITHIN YOUR

         4  RESPONSIBILITIES; CORRECT?

         5  A.   IT IS.

         6  Q.   NOW, LET ME ASK YOU AGAIN:  APPROXIMATELY HOW MANY

         7  APPLICATIONS ARE AVAILABLE FOR WINDOWS?

         8  A.   AS I SAID, I DON'T MAKE IT A PRIORITY TO COUNT THEM

         9  BECAUSE THERE ARE LOTS AVAILABLE.

        10  Q.   WELL, SIR, WITHOUT HAVING NECESSARILY COUNTED THEM,

        11  CAN YOU TELL ME WHETHER IT'S TENS OF THOUSANDS?

        12  A.   IF YOU COUNT APPLICATIONS THAT ARE WRITTEN INSIDE

        13  CORPORATIONS, IT COULD BE TENS OF THOUSANDS.

        14  Q.   NOW, WITH RESPECT TO WEBTV, DID MICROSOFT BUY WEBTV?

        15  A.   WE DID, SIR.

        16  Q.   AND WHEN MICROSOFT CAME TO THE ANTITRUST ENFORCEMENT

        17  AGENCIES TO GET PERMISSION TO DO THAT OR NOT TO BE

        18  CHALLENGED, DID MICROSOFT TAKE THE POSITION THE WEBTV

        19  DIDN'T COMPETE WITH MICROSOFT?

        20  A.   WEBTV DID NOT COMPETE WITH MICROSOFT?

        21  Q.   YES.  DID YOU TAKE THAT POSITION, SIR?

        22  A.   MICROSOFT AS A WHOLE COMPANY?

        23  Q.   YES, MICROSOFT AS A WHOLE COMPANY, THE MICROSOFT

        24  COMPANY BROUGHT THIS FOR APPROVAL.

        25           AND WHEN MICROSOFT DID THAT, DID MICROSOFT, THE
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         1  COMPANY, OF WHICH YOU'RE AN OFFICER, TAKE THE POSITION

         2  THAT WEBTV WAS NOT COMPETITIVE, NOT COMPETITIVE WITH

         3  WINDOWS?

         4  A.   I DON'T ACTUALLY RECALL THE POSITION WE TOOK.  I

         5  RECALL US SAYING THAT THERE PROBABLY IS A DIFFERENT FORM

         6  OF COMPUTING.

         7  Q.   NOW, WHAT IS CALDERA'S REVENUES FROM OPENLINUX?

         8  A.   I HAVE NO IDEA WHAT THEIR REVENUES ARE.  I SHOULD

         9  IMAGINE THEY'RE RELATIVELY SMALL GIVEN THAT THE LINUX

        10  SYSTEM IS PART OF THE OPEN SOFTWARE MOVEMENT.

        11  Q.   WHAT IS MICROSOFT'S ANNUAL REVENUES FROM MICROSOFT'S

        12  PC OPERATING SYSTEMS?

        13  A.   YOU'RE ASKING FOR WINDOWS 95 AND WINDOWS 98, OR ALL

        14  OF OUR OPERATING SYSTEMS?

        15  Q.   WELL, WHY DON'T WE START WITH WINDOWS 95 AND

        16  WINDOWS 98 FIRST, AND THEN I WILL ASK YOU FOR THE OTHERS.

        17  A.   OUR REVENUES FROM WINDOWS 95 AND WINDOWS 98, ON AN

        18  ANNUAL BASIS, ARE ABOUT $3 BILLION.

        19  Q.   ABOUT $3 BILLION A YEAR.

        20           AND HOW MUCH OF THAT $3 BILLION A YEAR IS PROFIT,

        21  SIR?

        22  A.   WE DON'T ACTUALLY CALCULATE A DIRECT PROFIT STATEMENT

        23  FOR WINDOWS BECAUSE TO DO THAT WE WOULD HAVE TO ALLOCATE

        24  VARIOUS THINGS LIKE THE COST OF OUR SALES FORCE, SO I

        25  COULD TELL YOU WHAT OUR ROUGH R&D AND MARKETING BUDGET FOR
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         1  WINDOWS IS, BUT I CAN'T GIVE YOU AN ACCOUNTANT'S PROFITS

         2  STATEMENT.

         3  Q.   WELL, LET'S START WITH WHAT THE R&D AND MARKETING FOR

         4  WINDOWS IS.

         5  A.   IT'S APPROXIMATELY A BILLION DOLLARS.

         6  Q.   A BILLION DOLLARS FOR THE TWO COMBINED?

         7  A.   FOR R&D AND MARKETING?  APPROXIMATELY.

         8  Q.   NOW, LET ME GO BACK TO SOMETHING YOU SAID.  DID YOU

         9  SAY THAT YOU DO NOT TRY TO ESTIMATE WHAT YOUR PROFITS ARE

        10  FROM THE WINDOWS OPERATING SYSTEM?

        11  A.   WE DON'T TRY AND DO A PRO-FORMA P&L STATEMENT FOR

        12  WINDOWS AS A BUSINESS.  WE SHARE CERTAIN RESOURCES IN THE

        13  COMPANY WITH OTHER BUSINESSES THAT WE HAVE, OUR SERVER

        14  BUSINESS, OUR SERVER APPLICATIONS BUSINESS, OUR DESKTOP

        15  APPLICATIONS BUSINESS, OUR DEVELOPMENT TOOLS BUSINESSES.

        16  SO, WE DON'T TRY AND ALLOCATE THOSE OUT IN A PRECISE WAY.

        17  WE BASICALLY LOOK AT THE REVENUES THAT ARE COMING IN ON A

        18  PARTICULAR PRODUCT LINE, AND WE LOOK AT OUR EXPENSES, THE

        19  DIRECTLY ATTRIBUTABLE EXPENSES.

        20  Q.   LET ME BE CLEAR.  I'M NOT ASKING YOU FOR A P&L, AND

        21  I'M NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PRECISE STATEMENT.  WHAT I WANT

        22  TO KNOW IS WHETHER MICROSOFT MAKES ANY ESTIMATE AT ALL AS

        23  TO WHAT ITS PROFITS ARE FROM THE WINDOWS 95 AND 98

        24  OPERATING SYSTEM PRODUCTS.

        25  A.   WE DON'T MAKE A DIRECT P&L ESTIMATE IN THE SENSE
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         1  YOU'RE SAYING IT.  WE DO TRACK FOR WINDOWS OUR REVENUES

         2  AND THE EXPENSES THAT WE CAN DIRECTLY ATTRIBUTE TO

         3  WINDOWS.

         4  Q.   AND JUST SO I'M CLEAR, I'M NOT ASKING YOU FOR A

         5  DIRECT P&L STATEMENT.  WHAT I'M ASKING YOU IS WHETHER

         6  MICROSOFT MAKES ANY ESTIMATE AT ALL AS TO WHAT ITS PROFIT

         7  IS FROM WINDOWS.  NOT ITS DIRECT PROFIT, BUT ITS TOTAL

         8  PROFIT FROM WINDOWS 95 AND 98.  ANY ESTIMATE AT ALL?

         9  A.   I THINK I JUST ANSWERED YOUR QUESTION, MR. BOIES,

        10  WHICH IS WE DON'T, AND WHAT WE DO TRACK ARE THE REVENUES

        11  AND DIRECTLY ATTRIBUTABLE EXPENSES.

        12  Q.   THAT'S ALL YOU TRACK?

        13  A.   THAT'S ALL I'M AWARE OF US TRACKING.

        14  Q.   SO, IT'S YOUR TESTIMONY THAT MICROSOFT, INSOFAR AS

        15  YOU'RE AWARE, HAS NEVER MADE AN ESTIMATE OF WHAT ITS

        16  ACTUAL OR PROJECTED PROFITS FOR WINDOWS 95 OR WINDOWS 98,

        17  OR THE TWO OF THEM COMBINED, MIGHT BE?

        18  A.   MY TESTIMONY WAS NOT THAT WE NEVER MADE AN ESTIMATE.

        19  MY TESTIMONY WAS THAT I WAS NOT AWARE OF US HAVING MADE AN

        20  ESTIMATE, AND I WAS TELLING YOU WHAT I WAS AWARE OF.

        21  Q.   WELL, SIR, IN YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES, IF MICROSOFT DID

        22  MAKE THESE KIND OF ESTIMATES, WOULD YOU THINK YOU WOULD BE

        23  AWARE OF THEM?

        24  A.   IT MAY OR MAY NOT BE.  AS I SAID, I'M NOT AWARE OF US

        25  CALCULATING A PURE PROFIT STATEMENT FOR WINDOWS.  I DO
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         1  KNOW THAT WE CALCULATE AND TRY AND TRACK VERY ACCURATELY

         2  OUR REVENUES COMING IN FOR WINDOWS AND TRYING TO TRACK

         3  VERY ACCURATELY DIRECTLY ATTRIBUTABLE EXPENSES.  WE DON'T

         4  SEE A LOT OF VALUE IN TRYING TO PARCEL OUT OTHER SHARED

         5  ACTIVITIES.

         6  Q.   HOW MUCH IS THE TOTAL OF OTHER SHARED ACTIVITIES?

         7  A.   HOW MUCH?  IN WHAT SENSE, SIR?

         8  Q.   HOW MUCH MONEY?

         9  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  AS I SAID, MY RESPONSIBILITY IS

        10  PRIMARILY DEVELOPMENT AND MARKETING OF WINDOWS, AND I KNOW

        11  THOSE NUMBERS, BUT I DON'T TRACK IN MY HEAD THE OTHER

        12  NUMBERS.  I'M SURE WE COULD FIND IT OUT FOR YOU.

        13  Q.   DO YOU HAVE ANY KIND OF ESTIMATE AS YOU SIT HERE?

        14  A.   I DON'T.

        15  Q.   IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT EVEN THOUGH YOU'RE NOT AWARE

        16  OF ANY ESTIMATE, THAT YOU ARE AWARE THAT WINDOWS 95 AND

        17  WINDOWS 98 ARE VERY PROFITABLE PRODUCTS?

        18  A.   I CERTAINLY CONSIDER THEM TO BE VERY PROFITABLE

        19  PRODUCTS, YES.

        20  Q.   AND DID THERE COME A TIME WHEN MICROSOFT BELIEVED

        21  THAT NETSCAPE'S BROWSER WAS A SERIOUS POTENTIAL THREAT TO

        22  MICROSOFT'S VERY PROFITABLE OPERATING SYSTEM BUSINESS?

        23  A.   YES.

        24  Q.   WHEN WAS THAT?

        25  A.   IT WOULD HAVE BEEN DURING THE FIRST HALF OF THE
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         1  CALENDAR YEAR 1995.

         2  Q.   AND WHAT WAS THE NATURE OF THAT THREAT?  WHY WAS

         3  NETSCAPE'S BROWSER A SERIOUS POTENTIAL THREAT TO

         4  MICROSOFT'S OPERATING SYSTEM BUSINESS?

         5  A.   WELL, ACTUALLY I THINK THIS IS ONE OF THE THINGS THAT

         6  MYSELF AND THE PLAINTIFFS AND MR. BARKSDALE ACTUALLY AGREE

         7  ON, ARE THAT NETSCAPE WAS BECOMING A PLATFORM,

         8  SOFTWARE--PLATFORM THAT OTHER SOFTWARE COULD DEPEND UPON,

         9  AND THEY WERE EXTENDING ITS CAPABILITY AS A PLATFORM.

        10           AND ONE OF THE NATURES OF A SOFTWARE PLATFORM IS

        11  THAT IT EXISTS TO ENABLE OTHER SOFTWARE.  AND IF THE OTHER

        12  SOFTWARE IS DEPENDING UPON YOUR COMPETITOR'S PLATFORM,

        13  EVEN IF IT'S RUNNING ON TOP OF YOUR OWN PLATFORM, OVER

        14  TIME THE VALUE OF THE PLATFORM CAN BECOME DIMINISHED.  AND

        15  AS MR. BARKSDALE TESTIFIED IN FRONT OF THE UNITED STATES

        16  SENATE, AND AS I MENTIONED IN MY TESTIMONY HERE, HE

        17  MENTIONED THAT THE FACT THAT THE BROWSER WAS SUBSTITUTING

        18  FOR WINDOWS WAS ONE OF THE KEY PHENOMENON OF RECENT

        19  COMPUTING HISTORY.

        20  Q.   IS THE BROWSER--WHAT YOU REFERRED TO AS MIDDLEWARE,

        21  SIR?

        22  A.   IT CAN BE, YES.

        23  Q.   AND, INDEED, YOU REFERRED TO IT, I THINK, IN YOUR

        24  TESTIMONY.

        25  A.   IN NETSCAPE'S CASE, I CERTAINLY CITE IT AS AN EXAMPLE
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         1  OF MIDDLEWARE.

         2  Q.   NOW, MIDDLEWARE IS NOT, ITSELF, AN OPERATING SYSTEM;

         3  IS THAT CORRECT?

         4  A.   IT IS NOT, IN ITSELF, AN OPERATING SYSTEM.  IT RELIES

         5  ON A (SIC) UNDERLYING OPERATING SYSTEM, BUT IT TAKES ON

         6  MANY OF THE FUNCTIONS OF AN OPERATING SYSTEM.

         7  Q.   AND AMONG THOSE FUNCTIONS IS IT BECOMES AN

         8  ALTERNATIVE PLATFORM TO WHICH ISV'S MAY WRITE

         9  CROSS-PLATFORM PROGRAMS AS OPPOSED TO WRITING THEM TO

        10  WINDOWS?

        11  A.   CORRECT.

        12  Q.   AND THAT WAS WHAT CAUSED YOU AND MICROSOFT TO

        13  RECOGNIZE THAT NETSCAPE WAS A SERIOUS POTENTIAL THREAT TO

        14  YOUR PLATFORM, WHICH IS WINDOWS?

        15  A.   CORRECT.

        16  Q.   NOW, IN ORDER TO ACTUALLY BECOME A SIGNIFICANT

        17  ALTERNATIVE PLATFORM, IT WOULD HAVE BEEN REQUIRED FOR

        18  NETSCAPE TO EXPAND THE CAPABILITIES AND TO EXPOSE A

        19  SUFFICIENT NUMBER OF API'S; CORRECT?

        20  A.   WELL, IT'S A MATTER OF DEGREE.  THE ISSUE WAS THEY

        21  WERE EXECUTING A STRATEGY OF EXPANDING THE NUMBER OF

        22  API'S, BOTH DIRECTLY AND INDIRECTLY, BECAUSE ONE OF THE

        23  KEY THINGS TO UNDERSTAND IS THAT IN TODAY'S INTERNET AGE,

        24  WEB PAGES THEMSELVES FUNCTION AS APPLICATIONS.

        25           SO, THEY WERE HOSTING APPLICATIONS BOTH IN THE
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         1  TRADITIONAL SENSE OF EXPOSING SOFTWARE INTERFACES, BUT

         2  ALSO IN THE SENSE OF HOSTING WEB PAGES AS APPLICATIONS.

         3  Q.   IN TERMS OF THE THREAT THAT NETSCAPE POSED, IS IT

         4  FAIR TO SAY THAT IF NETSCAPE HAD BEEN MERELY A BROWSER AND

         5  HAD NOT HAD THE POTENTIAL TO EXTEND ITS CAPABILITIES TO

         6  BECOME A PLATFORM, IT WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN VIEWED AS A

         7  SERIOUS COMPETITIVE THREAT?

         8  A.   WELL, AS I SAID, YOU HAVE TO BE CAREFUL ABOUT HOW YOU

         9  USED THE WORD JUST A BROWSER, BECAUSE, AS I EXPLAINED,

        10  TODAY THERE ARE TWO CLASSES OF THINGS THAT AN END USER

        11  WOULD CONSIDER AN APPLICATION:  THE TRADITIONAL SOFTWARE

        12  APPLICATIONS THAT ARE WRITTEN USING A TRADITIONAL

        13  PROGRAMMING LANGUAGE, BUT THERE ARE WEB PAGES THAT LOOK,

        14  TO ALL INTENTS AND PURPOSES, TO AN END USER AS AN

        15  APPLICATION.  AND THEY ARE WRITTEN IN, IF YOU LIKE, HTML,

        16  WHICH IS THE LANGUAGE THAT A BROWSER UNDERSTANDS.

        17           SO, BY EXTENDING THE CAPABILITIES OF THE TYPE OF

        18  WEB PAGES THAT YOU CAN HOST, YOU CAN BECOME A PLATFORM

        19  WITHOUT HAVING TO ALSO HOST TRADITIONAL APPLICATIONS.

        20  NETSCAPE, IN FACT, WAS DOING BOTH.

        21  Q.   LET ME SEE IF CAN MAKE MY QUESTION A LITTLE CLEARER.

        22           THERE IS, AT PRESENT, A BROWSER CALLED

        23  "NCOMPASS"?

        24  A.   CORRECT.

        25  Q.   AND YOU'RE FAMILIAR WITH THAT?

                                                           30

         1  A.   I AM.

         2  Q.   AND THE NCOMPASS BROWSER USES MICROSOFT TECHNOLOGIES;

         3  CORRECT?

         4  A.   CORRECT.

         5  Q.   AND A BROWSER LIKE NCOMPASS THAT USES THE

         6  TECHNOLOGIES OF THE MICROSOFT PLATFORM IS NOT GOING TO BE

         7  VIEWED AS A SERIOUS COMPETITIVE THREAT TO MICROSOFT; FAIR?

         8  A.   CORRECT.

         9  Q.   NOW, WHAT I'M REALLY JUST TRYING TO DO IS TO

        10  DISTINGUISH SOMETHING LIKE THE NCOMPASS BROWSER THAT IS

        11  NOT A COMPETITIVE THREAT WITH THE NETSCAPE BROWSER THAT IS

        12  A COMPETITIVE THREAT, OKAY?

        13  A.   GO AHEAD.

        14  Q.   NOW.  THE THING THAT DISTINGUISHES THE NETSCAPE

        15  BROWSER FROM THE NCOMPASS THREAT IN TERMS OF MAKING ONE A

        16  COMPETITIVE THREAT AND ONE NOT IS BECAUSE THE NETSCAPE

        17  BROWSER HAS THE CAPABILITY OF DEVELOPING INTO AN

        18  ALTERNATIVE PLATFORM; IS THAT CORRECT?

        19  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        20  Q.   NOW, IN ORDER TO TRY TO PREVENT NETSCAPE'S BROWSER

        21  FROM DEVELOPING INTO AN ALTERNATIVE PLATFORM, IS IT FAIR

        22  TO SAY THAT YOU AND OTHERS AT MICROSOFT CONCLUDED AND SAID

        23  THAT BROWSER MARKET SHARE, GAINING BROWSER MARKET SHARE,

        24  WAS A NUMBER ONE GOAL FOR MICROSOFT?

        25  A.   WE DID SAY THAT BROWSER SHARE WAS AN IMPORTANT GOAL
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         1  FOR US.

         2  Q.   AND, INDEED, I THINK THERE WAS AN E-MAIL THAT YOU MAY

         3  OR MAY NOT BE FAMILIAR WITH BY MR. GATES IN WHICH HE SAID

         4  IT WAS A VERY, VERY IMPORTANT GOAL.  ARE YOU FAMILIAR WITH

         5  THAT?

         6  A.   I DON'T RECALL OFFHAND, BUT I HAVE NO REASON TO DOUBT

         7  THAT HE MAY HAVE SAID THAT.

         8  Q.   AND YOU HAVE NO REASON TO DOUBT THAT YOU, YOURSELF,

         9  HAVE REFERRED TO BROWSER MARKET SHARE NOT ONLY AS AN

        10  IMPORTANT GOAL BUT AS A NUMBER ONE GOAL; CORRECT, SIR?

        11  A.   CORRECT.

        12  Q.   NOW, IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT THE HIGHER MICROSOFT'S

        13  BROWSER SHARE GETS, THE LESS SERIOUS AN ALTERNATIVE

        14  PLATFORM NETSCAPE BROWSER WOULD BE?

        15  A.   A KEY POINT HERE IS THAT IT WAS IMPORTANT THAT THE

        16  FACILITY THAT WE WERE OFFERING TO HOST THESE NEW TYPES OF

        17  APPLICATIONS, WHICH WAS OUR INTERNET TECHNOLOGIES THAT WE

        18  REFERRED TO AS INTERNET EXPLORER, BE WIDELY USED IN THE

        19  SAME SENSE AS IN THE CASE OF NETWORKING OR MULTIMEDIA,

        20  WHICH ALSO HAVE THEIR OWN PARTICULAR TYPE OF APPLICATIONS,

        21  THAT IT WAS IMPORTANT THAT THE NETWORKING TECHNOLOGY THAT

        22  WE HAD, OR THE MULTIMEDIA TECHNOLOGIES THAT WE HAD, BE

        23  WIDELY USED.

        24           SO, CLEARLY, IT WAS IN OUR INTEREST TO MAKE SURE

        25  THAT WE HAD--WERE OFFERING TO SOFTWARE DEVELOPERS AND TO
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         1  OUR CUSTOMERS A PLATFORM THAT COULD SATISFY THEIR NEEDS,

         2  AND IT WAS CLEARLY IN OUR INTEREST TO MAKE SURE THAT THAT

         3  PLATFORM WAS WIDELY USED.

         4  Q.   AND DID YOU BELIEVE THAT THE HIGHER A BROWSER MARKET

         5  SHARE MICROSOFT ACHIEVED, THE LESS SERIOUS NETSCAPE'S

         6  COMPETITIVE THREAT WAS LIKELY TO BE?

         7  A.   CLEARLY, WHEN YOU'RE IN COMPETITION WITH ANOTHER

         8  PLATFORM, THE MORE THAT YOUR PLATFORM GETS USED VERSUS THE

         9  COMPETITOR'S PLATFORM, IT STANDS TO REASON THAT YOU WILL

        10  BE BETTER OFF.

        11  Q.   NOW, IN ADDITION TO WANTING TO INCREASE MICROSOFT'S

        12  BROWSER SHARE, DID MICROSOFT WANT TO REDUCE NETSCAPE'S

        13  BROWSER SHARE, AS AN INDEPENDENT GOAL?

        14  A.   NO.  OUR GOAL WAS TO MAKE SURE THAT WE GAVE LARGE

        15  NUMBERS OF USERS EVERY REASON AND EVERY OPPORTUNITY TO

        16  PREFER OUR PLATFORM.

        17  Q.   LET ME BE SURE THE QUESTION AND ANSWER ARE MEETING.

        18           YOU SAID YOU WANTED TO INCREASE MICROSOFT'S

        19  BROWSER MARKET SHARE.

        20           DID YOU CARE WHETHER YOU WERE INCREASING IT AT

        21  THE EXPENSE OF NETSCAPE OR AT THE EXPENSE OF SOMEBODY

        22  ELSE?

        23  A.   WELL, MY EXACT TESTIMONY, IF YOU RECALL, MR. BOIES,

        24  WAS THAT WE WANTED TO GIVE EVERY REASON FOR DEVELOPERS AND

        25  USERS TO PREFER AND USE OUR PLATFORM.  IT'S A
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         1  STRAIGHTFORWARD CONSEQUENCE OF COMPETITION, WHEN YOU'RE IN

         2  COMPETITION WITH ANOTHER COMPANY OR ANOTHER PLATFORM, THAT

         3  IF USERS PREFER YOURS, THERE IS GOING TO BE LESS THAT USE

         4  THEIRS.

         5  Q.   LET ME BE SURE THAT I UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING.

         6           YOU SAID AT THE TIME THAT MICROSOFT'S GAINING

         7  BROWSER MARKET SHARE WAS AN IMPORTANT GOAL--INDEED, A

         8  NUMBER ONE GOAL--IN YOUR VIEW; CORRECT?

         9  A.   CORRECT.

        10  Q.   NOW, MY QUESTION TO YOU, SIR, IS THAT WHEN YOU HAD

        11  THAT GOAL, DID IT MATTER TO YOU WHETHER YOU WERE GAINING

        12  SHARE AT THE EXPENSE OF NETSCAPE OR NOT?

        13  A.   MY PRIMARY CONCERN IN ARTICULATING THAT GOAL WAS THAT

        14  WE HAD THIS VERY IMPORTANT PHENOMENON HAPPENING, WEB PAGES

        15  AND THE INTERNET, AND IT WAS VERY IMPORTANT TO ME THAT WE

        16  OFFERED TO DEVELOPERS AND TO USERS A FACILITY TO MEET

        17  THEIR NEEDS, AND THAT WE SHOULD GET AS LARGE AS POSSIBLE A

        18  NUMBER OF PEOPLE TO USE IT AS WE COULD.

        19  Q.   MY QUESTION TO YOU, SIR, IS THAT WHEN YOU WANTED TO

        20  GROW MICROSOFT'S MARKET SHARE, DID IT MATTER TO YOU

        21  WHETHER YOU GREW IT AT THE EXPENSE OF NETSCAPE OR NOT?

        22           IN OTHER WORDS, LET'S SAY NETSCAPE HAS GOT 50

        23  PERCENT OF THE MARKET, AND OTHER BROWSERS HAVE 40 PERCENT

        24  OF THE MARKET, AND YOU HAVE GOT TEN PERCENT OF THE MARKET

        25  FOR BROWSERS AND YOU WANT TO GROW YOUR SHARE.
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         1           DOES IT MATTER WHETHER YOU'RE TAKING AWAY SHARE

         2  FROM THE 50 PERCENT THAT NETSCAPE HAS, OR DO YOU JUST CARE

         3  ABOUT GROWING YOUR SHARE REGARDLESS OF WHERE IT COMES

         4  FROM?

         5  A.   WE WERE, AS I SAID, CONCERNED ABOUT GETTING THE USAGE

         6  OF OUR PLATFORM UP.  THAT, OUT OF NECESSITY, WOULD MEAN

         7  THAT IT WOULD HAVE TO COME--MEANING THAT WE WOULD PERSUADE

         8  CUSTOMERS TO USE OUR SYSTEM VERSUS SOMEBODY ELSE'S.  SO,

         9  I'M NOT SURE IF I REALLY UNDERSTAND YOUR QUESTION.

        10  Q.   LET ME TRY TO BE AS CLEAR AS I CAN BE.

        11           YOU WANTED TO GROW MICROSOFT'S BROWSER MARKET

        12  SHARE.  YOU WERE HERE WHEN DEAN SCHMALENSEE TESTIFIED,

        13  WERE YOU NOT?

        14  A.   I WAS HERE FOR A PORTION, ONE MORNING OF HIS

        15  TESTIMONY.  I WASN'T HERE FOR ALL OF IT.

        16  Q.   AND DID YOU SEE HIS VARIOUS MARKET SHARE CHARTS?

        17  A.   I ACTUALLY DID NOT.

        18  Q.   WELL, HE HAD SOME MARKET SHARE CHARTS THAT SHOWED

        19  NETSCAPE'S SHARE AND OTHER BROWSER'S SHARE AND MICROSOFT'S

        20  SHARE.

        21           WHEN YOU WANTED TO GROW MICROSOFT'S MARKET SHARE,

        22  DID IT MATTER TO YOU WHETHER YOU GREW IT AT THE EXPENSE OF

        23  NETSCAPE OR NOT?  OR WERE YOU JUST INTERESTED IN SHARE

        24  REGARDLESS OF WHERE IT CAME FROM?

        25  A.   WELL, I WAS AWARE THAT NETSCAPE WAS OUR PRINCIPAL
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         1  COMPETITOR IN SERVICING THAT USER AND DEVELOPER NEED, BUT

         2  IT DIDN'T MATTER TO ME PRECISELY WHETHER IT CAME FROM

         3  NETSCAPE OR NOT, IF YOU'RE ASKING ME IF IT MATTERED VERSUS

         4  SOME OTHER COMPANY.

         5  Q.   OKAY.  THAT'S WHAT I WAS ASKING.

         6           ARE YOU AWARE OF ANY ACTIONS THAT MICROSOFT TOOK

         7  SPECIFICALLY TO TRY TO RESTRICT NETSCAPE'S BROWSER

         8  DISTRIBUTION?

         9  A.   I'M NOT AWARE OF ANY ACTIONS THAT WE TOOK TO

        10  SPECIFICALLY RESTRICT NETSCAPE'S BROWSER DISTRIBUTION, NO.

        11  Q.   ONE OF THE THINGS THAT YOU TALK ABOUT IN YOUR DIRECT

        12  TESTIMONY--AND YOU HAVE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY UP THERE?

        13  A.   I DO.

        14  Q.   --IS APPLE.  AND I WOULD LIKE TO DIRECT YOUR

        15  ATTENTION TO PARAGRAPH 385.

        16  A.   IF YOU GAVE ME A MINUTE, I WILL GET MYSELF THERE.

        17  Q.   I WILL.

        18           AND THIS IS IN THE MIDDLE OF DISCUSSIONS BETWEEN

        19  APPLE AND MICROSOFT.

        20  A.   I'M NOT SURE WHAT YOU MEAN BY IN THE MIDDLE OF

        21  DISCUSSIONS BETWEEN APPLE AND MICROSOFT.

        22           MR. BOIES:  COULD I APPROACH WITNESS, YOUR HONOR?

        23           THE COURT:  SURE.

        24  BY MR. BOIES:

        25  Q.   IS THERE MORE THAN ONE VERSION OF YOUR DIRECT
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         1  TESTIMONY, SIR?

         2  A.   I WAS ONLY AWARE OF TWO VERSIONS, ONE WHICH WE

         3  SUBMITTED ON JANUARY 7TH, I BELIEVE, AND THERE WAS A

         4  CORRECTED VERSION WHICH WAS SUBMITTED RECENTLY, BUT THAT

         5  DIDN'T CHANGE THE PARAGRAPH NUMBERING FROM WHAT I KNOW.

         6  Q.   WELL, I WILL REPRESENT TO YOU THAT IT DID CHANGE THE

         7  PARAGRAPH NUMBERING.

         8  A.   I'M NOT AWARE OF THAT.

         9           MR. WARDEN:  PARAGRAPH NUMBERS ARE CHANGED BY

        10  ONE.

        11           THE WITNESS:  OKAY.  I APOLOGIZE FOR THAT.  I

        12  DIDN'T KNOW THAT.

        13  BY MR. BOIES:

        14  Q.   THAT'S OKAY.  AND SINCE I KNOW IT CHANGED BY ONE,

        15  EVEN I CAN MASTER THAT ALGORITHM.

        16           LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO PARAGRAPH 384.

        17  A.   IF YOU GIVE ME A MINUTE TO READ THROUGH IT, THEN I

        18  WILL BE WITH YOU.

        19  Q.   WHEN YOU HAVE THIS PARAGRAPH IN CONTEXT, WOULD YOU

        20  PLEASE LET ME KNOW.

        21  A.   OKAY.

        22           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

        23  A.   GO AHEAD, MR. BOIES.

        24  Q.   IN PARAGRAPH 385, YOU ARE TALKING ABOUT THE

        25  NEGOTIATION OF WHAT BECAME THE AUGUST 1997 AGREEMENT
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         1  BETWEEN APPLE AND MICROSOFT; CORRECT?

         2  A.   I AM.  AND IN PARTICULAR, I BELIEVE THAT THIS

         3  PARAGRAPH REFERS TO THE NEGOTIATIONS BETWEEN MR. MAFFEI

         4  AND MR. JOBS IN THE TWO OR THREE WEEKS AFTER MR. AMELIO

         5  HAD LEFT APPLE.

         6  Q.   AND WHAT YOU SAY HERE IS THAT APPLE'S DISTRIBUTION OF

         7  INTERNET EXPLORER WAS NOT AN IMPORTANT PART OF THE

         8  DISCUSSIONS.

         9  A.   THAT IS WHAT I UNDERSTAND.

        10  Q.   FROM WHOM DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT, SIR?

        11  A.   IN THIS CASE, I AM TESTIFYING AS A SUMMARY WITNESS,

        12  WHICH IS, I UNDERSTAND, ONE OF THE THINGS THAT WE WERE

        13  ASKED TO DO IN THIS CASE, AND I AM TESTIFYING IN THIS CASE

        14  BASED UPON THE INPUT OF MR. MAFFEI.

        15           IN FACT, ONE OF THE EXHIBITS THAT YOU DISCUSSED

        16  TO BEGIN WITH, NAMELY THE ELECTRONIC MAIL FROM MR. MAFFEI

        17  TO MR. GATES, DIRECTLY SPEAKS TO THIS PARAGRAPH.

        18  Q.   IN THE NEXT SENTENCE YOU SAY, "MR. MAFFEI DISTINCTLY

        19  RECALLS THAT HE RAISED THE SUBJECT OF INTERNET EXPLORER

        20  WITH MR. JOBS WHILE STANDING UNDER A TREE IN PALO ALTO ON

        21  JULY 20, ONLY AFTER THEY HAD ALREADY SETTLED THE BROAD

        22  TERMS OF THE PATENT LICENSE AND MICROSOFT'S COMMITMENT

        23  REGARDING MACOFFICE."

        24           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        25  A.   I SEE THAT.
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         1  Q.   DID MR. MAFFEI TELL YOU THAT?

         2  A.   HE DID.

         3  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHAT KIND OF TREE IT WAS?

         4  A.   HE DID NOT GO INTO THAT LEVEL OF DETAIL, MR. BOIES,

         5  BUT I'M SURE IF YOU WOULD LIKE TO KNOW, WE COULD PROBABLY

         6  ASK HIM.

         7  Q.   DID HE TELL YOU WHAT MR. JOBS AND HE HAPPENED TO BE

         8  DOING STANDING UNDER A TREE ON JULY 20?

         9  A.   NO.  THE ONLY THING THAT I DO REMEMBER HIM TELLING ME

        10  IS THEY WERE WALKING AROUND PALO ALTO DISCUSSING HOW TO

        11  COME TO AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN APPLE AND MICROSOFT, AND I DO

        12  RECALL MR. MAFFEI TELLING ME THAT MR. JOBS WAS WEARING NO

        13  SHOES.

        14  Q.   SO, STANDING UNDER A TREE WITH MR. JOBS WEARING NO

        15  SHOES IN PALO ALTO WAS WHEN MR. MAFFEI RAISED THE SUBJECT

        16  OF INTERNET EXPLORER?

        17  A.   THAT IS WHAT MR. MAFFEI TOLD ME, YES.

        18  Q.   AND INDEED, IF YOU LOOK AT THE VERY LAST SENTENCE OF

        19  THIS PARAGRAPH, YOU SAY, "THE SUBJECT OF INTERNET EXPLORER

        20  WAS NOT RAISED IN THE NEGOTIATIONS THAT LED TO THE AUGUST

        21  1997 AGREEMENTS UNTIL AFTER THE PRIMARY DEAL TERMS WERE

        22  WORKED OUT.

        23  A.   THAT IS WHAT MR. MAFFEI TOLD ME, AND THE

        24  ELECTRONIC-MAIL MESSAGE THAT WE DISCUSSED EARLIER, IS

        25  MR. MAFFEI, I BELIEVE, PRIOR TO THIS POINT COMMUNICATING
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         1  TO MR. GATES WHAT THE PRIMARY TERMS OF THE DEALS WERE.

         2  AND I BELIEVE THERE WERE FOUR KEY POINTS, AND NONE OF

         3  THOSE FOUR KEY POINTS, IN FACT, REFERRED TO INTERNET

         4  EXPLORER.

         5  Q.   NOW, ARE YOU AWARE OF ANY DISCUSSIONS OR

         6  COMMUNICATIONS FROM MR. GATES ABOUT WHAT HE BELIEVED THE

         7  KEY POINTS WERE?

         8  A.   IN THIS PARTICULAR SET OF NEGOTIATIONS?

         9  Q.   WELL, IN CONNECTION WITH THE NEGOTIATIONS WITH APPLE,

        10  SIR.  I DON'T MEAN TO LIMIT IT JUST TO THE BAREFOOT WALK

        11  AROUND PALO ALTO.  I MEAN TO INCLUDE, AS YOU PUT IT IN THE

        12  LAST SENTENCE OF THIS PARAGRAPH, THE NEGOTIATIONS THAT LED

        13  TO THE AUGUST 1997 AGREEMENTS.

        14  A.   AND AS I SAID EARLIER, MR. BOIES, THAT SENTENCE THERE

        15  REFERS TO THE NEGOTIATIONS THAT ACTUALLY CONCLUDED THIS

        16  DEAL, WHICH STARTED WITH THE ADVENT OF MR. JOBS RETURNING

        17  TO APPLE, AND MR. MAFFEI AND HIM CONCLUDING THE AUGUST 7TH

        18  AGREEMENT, WHICH HAPPENED IN THE SPACE OF THREE OR FOUR

        19  WEEKS.

        20  Q.   SO, WHAT YOU'RE REFERRING TO HERE IS ONLY WHAT

        21  HAPPENED IN A SHORT FEW-WEEK PERIOD; IS THAT WHAT YOU'RE

        22  SAYING?

        23  A.   CORRECT.

        24  Q.   NOW, YOU'RE AWARE THAT MICROSOFT AND APPLE HAD BEEN

        25  TALKING BEFORE THAT?
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         1  A.   I AM AWARE OF THAT.

         2  Q.   AND THEY TALKED AFTER THAT?

         3  A.   NOT ON THAT PARTICULAR SET OF SUBJECTS.  I THINK WE

         4  HAD THE DEAL CLOSED, BUT I'M SURE WE HAVE TALKED TO APPLE

         5  AFTER THAT.

         6  Q.   WELL, YOU TALKED AFTER JULY 20; IS THAT CORRECT, SIR?

         7  A.   YES, THAT IS CORRECT.

         8  Q.   AND WHAT YOU'RE SAYING IS THE SUBJECT OF INTERNET

         9  EXPLORER WAS RAISED IN THE NEGOTIATIONS BEFORE THIS

        10  TWO-WEEK WINDOW?

        11  A.   THE SUBJECT OF INTERNET EXPLORER HAD BEEN RAISED IN

        12  DISCUSSIONS BETWEEN OURSELVES AND APPLE BEFORE THAT, AS I

        13  POINT OUT IN THIS PARAGRAPH, THERE BEING AN EARLIER

        14  INFORMAL AGREEMENT BY APPLE TO INCLUDE THE INTERNET

        15  EXPLORER, NOT MAKE IT THE DEFAULT EXPLORER, BUT INCLUDE IT

        16  IN THE APPLE MACINTOSH OPERATING SYSTEM.  AND I HAD, IN

        17  FACT, JOINTLY ANNOUNCED THAT WITH MR. AMELIO, AS I POINTED

        18  OUT THERE.

        19  Q.   WHAT YOU'RE REFERRING TO HERE DOESN'T HAVE TO DO WITH

        20  MAKING INTERNET EXPLORER THE DEFAULT BROWSER, DOES IT,

        21  SIR?

        22  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        23  Q.   AND WHAT HAPPENED IN THE AUGUST 1997 AGREEMENTS WAS

        24  THAT IE DID BECOME THE DEFAULT BROWSER; RIGHT?

        25  A.   CORRECT.
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         1  Q.   NOW, WHEN DID MICROSOFT, AS YOU UNDERSTAND IT, FIRST

         2  TRY TO GET APPLE TO AGREE TO MAKE IE THE DEFAULT BROWSER

         3  IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT THAT WAS ULTIMATELY

         4  ENTERED IN AUGUST OF 1997?

         5  A.   I DON'T KNOW.

         6  Q.   WOULD IT BE FAIR TO SAY THAT YOU DO KNOW THAT IT WAS

         7  BEFORE JULY 20?

         8  A.   IN TERMS OF THE DEFAULT BROWSER?  I ACTUALLY DON'T

         9  KNOW IF WE ACTUALLY RAISED THAT PARTICULAR ISSUE.  I DO

        10  KNOW THAT WE HAD BEEN TRYING TO INSURE THAT APPLE

        11  DISTRIBUTED THE INTERNET EXPLORER, BUT I DON'T KNOW FOR A

        12  FACT, ONE WAY OR THE OTHER, WHETHER THE ISSUE OF A DEFAULT

        13  BROWSER WAS RAISED BEFORE OR NOT.

        14  Q.   WELL, DID YOU EVER TALK ABOUT THAT WITH MR. MAFFEI?

        15  A.   THAT PARTICULAR POINT?  NO, I DIDN'T.

        16  Q.   WHEN MR. MAFFEI TOLD YOU THAT HE DISTINCTLY RECALLED

        17  THE SUBJECT OF IE BEING RAISED WITH MR. JOBS WEARING NO

        18  SHOES UNDER A TREE IN PALO ALTO ON JULY 20, DID YOU SAY

        19  "WELL, WAS THAT THE FIRST TIME YOU HAD ASKED?"

        20  A.   I DID NOT ASK HIM THAT QUESTION.

        21           MR. BOIES:  LET ME ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE SHOWN

        22  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 260.

        23           THE WITNESS:  ARE WE DONE WITH MY TESTIMONY NOW,

        24  OR SHOULD I KEEP IT OPEN?

        25  BY MR. BOIES:
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         1  Q.   OH, I THINK WE SHOULD KEEP IT OPEN WHILE WE ARE

         2  COVERING THE SUBJECT.

         3           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

         4  Q.   GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 260, WHICH IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE,

         5  INCLUDES A JUNE 23, 1996, MEMORANDUM FROM MR. GATES TO

         6  YOU--

         7  A.   GIVE ME A MINUTE TO COMPLETELY READ THE DOCUMENT,

         8  THEN I WILL BE WITH YOU.

         9  Q.   ABSOLUTELY.  YOU WILL HAVE PLENTY OF TIME TO READ THE

        10  DOCUMENT.

        11  A.   OKAY.

        12  Q.   I--

        13  A.   SHOULD I READ IT NOW OR WAIT FOR YOU TO GO AHEAD?

        14  Q.   YOU COULD DO IT EITHER WAY, BUT TYPICALLY WHY DON'T

        15  YOU WAIT FOR THE QUESTION BECAUSE MAYBE THE QUESTION WILL

        16  HELP YOU FOCUS ON WHAT YOU WOULD LIKE TO SEE IN THE

        17  MEMORANDUM.

        18  A.   OKAY.

        19  Q.   IN THE PORTION OF IT THAT I WOULD LIKE TO FOCUS ON

        20  FIRST IS THE FIRST TWO PARAGRAPHS OF THIS MEMORANDUM, THE

        21  SUBJECT OF WHICH IS APPLE MEETING.

        22           AND WHEN YOU HAVE READ AS MUCH AS YOU NEED TO TO

        23  HAVE THAT IN CONTEXT, PLEASE LET ME KNOW.

        24           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

        25  A.   GO AHEAD, MR. BOIES.
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         1  Q.   MR. GATES REFERS TO A MEETING THAT HE HAD WITH TOP

         2  APPLE EXECUTIVES, AND HE GOES ON TO SAY, "I HAVE TWO KEY

         3  GOALS IN INVESTING IN THE APPLE RELATIONSHIP:  ONE,

         4  MAINTAIN OUR APPLICATIONS SHARE ON THE PLATFORM; AND TWO,

         5  SEE IF WE COULD GET THEM TO EMBRACE INTERNET EXPLORER IN

         6  SOME WAY."

         7           DO YOU RECALL RECEIVING THIS MEMORANDUM?

         8  A.   I DON'T ACTUALLY RECALL RECEIVING IT, BUT I HAVE NO

         9  DOUBT--I HAVE NO REASON TO DOUBT THAT I DID RECEIVE IT.

        10  Q.   DO YOU RECALL THAT ONE OF MR. GATES'S TWO KEY GOALS

        11  IN INVESTING IN THE APPLE RELATIONSHIP WAS TO TRY TO GET

        12  APPLE TO EMBRACE INTERNET EXPLORER?

        13  A.   I DO RECALL HIM--WELL, I CAN READ HERE WHAT HE SAYS,

        14  WHICH IS THAT HE HAS TWO KEY GOALS, WHICH HE'S ADDRESSING

        15  TO MYSELF AND MR. SILVERBERG, AND SO YOU NEED TO READ THIS

        16  MAIL IN THEIR TWO CONTEXTS.  ONE IS THAT THE MAIL IS

        17  ADDRESSED TO MYSELF AND MR. SILVERBERG; AND SECONDLY, HE'S

        18  TALKING ABOUT A RELATIONSHIP.  AND ACTUALLY THE THIRD

        19  POINT AS WELL, WHICH IF YOU TURN OVER THE PAGE, YOU WILL

        20  SEE THAT HE TOOK FOR GRANTED THAT UNDER THIS RELATIONSHIP

        21  WE WOULD HAVE SETTLED THE KEY ISSUE WHICH WE PERCEIVED

        22  WITH APPLE, WHICH WAS THE PATENT ISSUE.

        23  Q.   WELL, SINCE YOU SUGGEST IT, LET'S GO TO THE BOTTOM OF

        24  THE FIRST PAGE AND THE TOP OF THE SECOND PAGE AND THEN

        25  COME BACK TO MY QUESTION.
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         1           AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FIRST PAGE THERE IS A

         2  HEADING THAT SAYS "APPLE GETS."

         3           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         4  A.   I SEE THAT.

         5  Q.   AND THEN IT LISTS THE THINGS THAT APPLE GETS,

         6  INCLUDING A COUPLE OF THINGS ON THE NEXT PAGE.  AND THEN

         7  ON THE NEXT PAGE THERE IS ANOTHER HEADING THAT SAYS

         8  "MICROSOFT GETS," AND THERE IS A LIST OF THINGS.

         9           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        10  A.   I SEE THAT.

        11  Q.   AND THE VERY FIRST THING THAT MICROSOFT GETS IS APPLE

        12  ENDORSES MICROSOFT INTERNET EXPLORER TECHNOLOGY; CORRECT,

        13  SIR?

        14  A.   I SEE THAT.

        15  Q.   AND THEN BENEATH THAT THERE IS SOMETHING THAT SAYS

        16  "BOTH GET," AND IT LISTS PATENT CROSS-LICENSE AND WE BOTH

        17  LOOK FRIENDLY AND COOPERATIVE; CORRECT, SIR?

        18  A.   I SEE THAT.

        19  Q.   AND THAT'S WHAT YOU WERE REFERRING TO A MOMENT AGO?

        20  A.   THAT'S WHAT I WAS REFERRING TO.

        21  Q.   NOW, LET ME GO BACK TO THE FIRST PAGE AND THE

        22  PARAGRAPH THAT I WAS INTERESTED IN.

        23           NOW, I UNDERSTAND THAT YOU SAY YOU DON'T RECALL

        24  RECEIVING THIS.  HOWEVER, MY QUESTION TO YOU IS WHETHER

        25  YOU RECALL, INDEPENDENT OF THIS DOCUMENT, THAT ONE OF
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         1  MR. GATES'S KEY GOALS FOR INVESTING IN THE APPLE

         2  RELATIONSHIP WAS TO TRY TO GET APPLE TO EMBRACE INTERNET

         3  EXPLORER.  DO YOU RECALL THAT, SIR?

         4  A.   I RECALL HIM EXPRESSING THAT AS A DESIRE.

         5           I ALSO RECALL HIM, AS A CONSTANT REFRAIN WHICH

         6  RUNS THROUGH EVERY DISCUSSION THAT WE HAD WITH APPLE, THAT

         7  UNLESS WE COULD SOLVE THIS BASIC ISSUE, WHICH WAS THEIR

         8  THREAT TO OUR BUSINESS, BASED UPON WHAT WE THOUGHT WAS

         9  UNJUSTIFIED PATENT ISSUES, BUT WE WERE SUPERSENSITIVE TO

        10  YOU BECAUSE, AS YOU KNOW, IN THE LATE EIGHTIES, APPLE HAD

        11  BROUGHT A SEVERAL BILLION DOLLAR LAWSUIT AGAINST

        12  MICROSOFT, A LAWSUIT THAT COULD HAVE LITERALLY PUT US OUT

        13  OF BUSINESS.  SO, WE WERE HYPERSENSITIVE TO THE FACT THAT

        14  AN APPLE, PARTICULARLY AN APPLE IN TROUBLE, COULD COME

        15  BACK AND ADOPT A STRATEGY OF LITIGATION AGAIN.

        16           SO, THROUGH EVERY CONVERSATION, EVERY THREAT OF

        17  DISCUSSION, YOU FIND THIS BASIC UNDERLYING THEME, WHICH IS

        18  YOU GOT TO GET THE PATENT ISSUES SETTLED.

        19  Q.   WELL, SIR, YOU SAY IN EVERY COMMUNICATION.  LET'S

        20  JUST FOCUS ON THE ONE WE HAPPEN TO HAVE IN FRONT OF US.

        21  A.   I WOULD BE MORE THAN HAPPY TO DO THAT.

        22  Q.   HE SAYS HERE, ALTHOUGH HE DOES MENTION THE PATENT

        23  LICENSE AT THE END OF THE SECOND PAGE, WHEN HE'S TALKING

        24  ABOUT HIS KEY GOALS, THE TWO KEY GOALS, THE ONLY TWO KEY

        25  GOALS IN THIS MEMORANDUM ARE THE ONES THAT ARE LISTED
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         1  HERE.

         2  A.   YEAH, YOU GOT TO UNDERSTAND--

         3  Q.   IS THAT WHAT IT SAYS?

         4  A.   THAT'S WHAT IT SAYS.

         5           THE POINT I'M MAKING HERE, MR. BOIES, IS THAT YOU

         6  HAVE TO UNDERSTAND THAT HE WASN'T ADDRESSING THIS MAIL TO

         7  OUR LEGAL STAFF OR TO THE PEOPLE WHO WERE ACTUALLY

         8  NEGOTIATING WITH APPLE.  WHAT HE'S ADDRESSING HERE IS A

         9  SERIES OF TECHNICAL ISSUES OF HOW WE COULD CONSTRUCT A

        10  RELATIONSHIP WITH APPLE EXCHANGING TECHNOLOGIES, ACTUALLY,

        11  THAT GO BEYOND THE BROWSER THAT GO INTO THE MULTIMEDIA

        12  SPACE AND TRY TO DO SOMETHING THAT WOULD BENEFIT BOTH

        13  COMPANIES.

        14           SO, THE FACT THAT THIS MAIL IS ADDRESSED TO ME

        15  AND THAT HE, AS ALWAYS, REMINDS US OF THE PATENT ISSUE, I

        16  DON'T THINK, IN ANY WAY, PROVES OR DISPROVES THAT INTERNET

        17  EXPLORER IS A KEY GOAL OR NOT.

        18  Q.   BUT YOU TESTIFIED THAT IT WAS A KEY GOAL, HAVE YOU

        19  NOT, SIR?

        20  A.   I SAID IT WAS A GOAL.  IT WAS NOT THE KEY GOAL IN

        21  DOING THE AUGUST '97 AGREEMENT.  THE KEY GOAL IN THE

        22  AUGUST '97 AGREEMENT WAS TO GET THE PATENT ISSUE SETTLED.

        23  Q.   WAS IT A KEY GOAL IN JUNE 1996?

        24  A.   WHAT MR. GATES SAYS HERE IS HE HAS TWO KEY GOALS IN

        25  INVESTING IN AN APPLE RELATIONSHIP.  IN OTHER WORDS, HE
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         1  KNOWS THAT WE NEED, WHATEVER HAPPENS, TO DO AN AGREEMENT

         2  THAT WILL SETTLE PATENTS, AND THAT'S ESSENTIALLY WHAT

         3  HAPPENED IN THE FINAL INSTANCE.

         4  Q.   WELL, IN THE FINAL INSTANCE, WHAT HAPPENED WAS YOU

         5  HAD AN AGREEMENT THAT DID A NUMBER OF THINGS, INCLUDING

         6  MADE INTERNET EXPLORER THE DEFAULT BROWSER; CORRECT, SIR?

         7  A.   CORRECT.  AND AS I SAID EARLIER, GIVEN PARAGRAPH 384

         8  THAT WE JUST BEEN THROUGH, AND BASED UPON THE INFORMATION

         9  I RECEIVED FROM MR. MAFFEI, HE FIRST SETTLED THE PATENT

        10  ISSUES AND, IN RETURN, MADE A COMMITMENT TO APPLE TO

        11  CONTINUE TO DEVELOP OFFICE APPLICATIONS FOR THE MACINTOSH

        12  PLATFORM, AND THAT WAS THE PRIMARY REASON FOR DOING THAT

        13  DEAL.

        14           INTERNET EXPLORER CAME IN AS A LATER TERM.

        15  Q.   AS A LATER TERM?

        16  A.   CORRECT.

        17  Q.   WELL, SIR, I WOULD ASK YOU TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT

        18  EXHIBIT 1046.

        19           THE COURT:  BEFORE WE DO THAT, I THINK WE WILL

        20  TAKE A BRIEF RECESS.

        21           (BRIEF RECESS.)

        22           THE COURT:  I WOULD LIKE TO STOP CLOSER TO 4:30

        23  THIS AFTERNOON THAN FIVE, SO IF YOU WOULD PICK A

        24  CONVENIENT TIME.

        25           MR. BOIES:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.
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         1           YOUR HONOR, I HAVE PLACED BEFORE THE WITNESS, AND

         2  I WOULD OFFER, GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1046.

         3           MR. WARDEN:  NO OBJECTION.

         4           THE COURT:  GOVERNMENT'S 1046 IS ADMITTED.

         5                         (GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 1046 WAS

         6                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

         7  BY MR. BOIES:

         8  Q.   THIS IS A PROPOSAL SENT BY MR. MAFFEI TO APPLE, APRIL

         9  27, 1997.

        10           HAVE YOU SEEN THIS BEFORE, SIR?

        11  A.   I HAVE NOT.

        12  Q.   NOW, YOU WILL NOTE THAT IT TALKS ABOUT AN APPLE

        13  MICROSOFT AGREEMENT, AND IT HAS 12 POINTS IN THE PROPOSAL.

        14           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        15  A.   I SEE THAT.

        16  Q.   AND ONE OF THEM, A POINT NUMBER TEN, IS, IN FACT, A

        17  PATENT CROSS-LICENSE.  ANOTHER ONE, POINT NUMBER FIVE, IS

        18  APPLE OFFERS IE AS THE DEFAULT BROWSER WHEREVER IT OFFERS

        19  A BROWSER.  BEGINNING WITH IE 3.01 AND MAC OS 8.

        20           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        21  A.   I SEE THAT.

        22  Q.   NOW, WOULD YOU AGREE WITH ME THAT THIS DOCUMENT SHOWS

        23  THAT MR. MAFFEI HAD RAISED THE QUESTION OF APPLE MAKING IE

        24  THE DEFAULT BROWSER AS PART OF THE AUGUST 1997 AGREEMENT

        25  SOMETIME BEFORE THE CONVERSATION UNDER THE TREE ON JULY 20
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         1  IN PALO ALTO?

         2  A.   I WOULD AGREE WITH THAT.  AND IF YOU RECALL MY

         3  TESTIMONY, I DID NOT KNOW WHETHER OR NOT IT HAD BEEN

         4  RAISED.  AND PARAGRAPH 384 OF MY TESTIMONY REFERS TO THE

         5  NEGOTIATIONS BETWEEN MR. MAFFEI AND MR. JOBS IN LATE JULY

         6  AND AUGUST OF 1997.

         7           AS YOU KNOW, MR. BOIES, THERE HAS BEEN NUMEROUS

         8  CONVERSATIONS WITH APPLE OVER THE CALENDAR YEAR '96 AND

         9  '97.  NONE OF THEM HAD GOT ANYWHERE UNTIL MR. JOBS CAME ON

        10  THE SCENE, AND SUDDENLY APPLE THEN HAD A MANAGEMENT TEAM

        11  THAT WAS CAPABLE OF MAKING DECISIONS, AND A NEW SET OF

        12  NEGOTIATIONS STARTED AND CONCLUDED VERY RAPIDLY.

        13  Q.   AND IN THOSE NEGOTIATIONS, IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT

        14  IE WAS NOT DISCUSSED AT ALL?

        15  A.   NO, MY TESTIMONY IN THOSE NEGOTIATIONS--

        16  Q.   BEFORE JULY 20.

        17  A.   OKAY.  MY TESTIMONY IS THAT IN THE NEGOTIATIONS

        18  BETWEEN MR. JOBS AND MR. MAFFEI, THAT THEY CONCLUDED THE

        19  CENTRAL POINTS, THE FOUR POINTS MR. MAFFEI REFERS TO IN

        20  HIS E-MAIL FIRST, AND THEN A SUBSEQUENT SESSION ALSO

        21  AGREED ON INTERNET EXPLORER AS THE DEFAULT BROWSER.

        22  Q.   LET ME SEE IF I CAN--

        23  A.   LET ME GET BACK OUT TO PARAGRAPH 384 AS WELL.  GIVE

        24  ME A SECOND THERE.

        25  Q.   AND 384 IS THE ONE--THE LAST SENTENCE OF WHICH, MAYBE

                                                           50

         1  WE COULD PUT IT BACK UP.

         2  A.   ARE YOU DONE WITH THE JUNE 25 E-MAIL?

         3  Q.   NO.  I WANTED TO GO TO WHAT YOU WANTED TO LOOK AT.

         4           THIS IS 384 OF YOUR TESTIMONY, THE LAST SENTENCE

         5  OF WHICH SAYS, "THE SUBJECT OF INTERNET EXPLORER WAS NOT

         6  RAISED IN THE NEGOTIATIONS THAT LED TO THE AUGUST 1997

         7  AGREEMENTS UNTIL AFTER THE PRIMARY DEAL TERMS WERE WORKED

         8  OUT."

         9           NOW, LET ME GO BACK TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1046,

        10  AND THIS IS A PROPOSAL AS OF THE END OF APRIL OF 1997; IS

        11  THAT CORRECT?

        12  A.   CORRECT.

        13  Q.   LET ME GO NEXT TO THE MONTH OF JULY OF 1997, ABOUT A

        14  LITTLE LESS THAN THREE WEEKS BEFORE THE FATEFUL JULY 20

        15  TREE CONFERENCE.

        16           MR. BOIES:  AND THIS IS GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 579.

        17  I WOULD ASK THAT BE PUT IN FRONT OF THE WITNESS.

        18           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        19           MR. BOIES:  AND THIS IS ALREADY IN EVIDENCE, YOUR

        20  HONOR.

        21           THE WITNESS:  DO YOU WANT TO ASK THE QUESTION

        22  FIRST AND THEN HAVE ME READ IT, OR WOULD YOU LIKE ME TO

        23  READ IT FIRST?

        24  BY MR. BOIES:

        25  Q.   I THINK THAT MAY BE THE MOST PRODUCTIVE WAY.
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         1  A.   YOU ASK THE QUESTION AND THEN I WILL READ IT?

         2  Q.   YES.

         3  A.   OKAY.

         4  Q.   THIS IS A MEMORANDUM FROM MR. GATES TO YOU, DATED

         5  JULY 1, 1997, TALKING ABOUT MICROSOFT'S DISCUSSIONS WITH

         6  APPLE.  AND HE SAYS, "ORIGINALLY, WE PROPOSED TO HAVE A

         7  DEAL WITH THE FOLLOWING ELEMENTS," AND THERE ARE THREE

         8  GENERAL ELEMENTS LISTED HERE.  THE FIRST ONE INCLUDES THE

         9  MICROSOFT BROWSER GETTING A PRIVILEGED POSITION.  THE

        10  THIRD INCLUDES A PATENT EXCHANGE AND, PERHAPS, SOME MONEY.

        11           MY FIRST QUESTION IS GOING TO BE WHETHER YOU

        12  RECALL RECEIVING THIS MEMORANDUM AT OR ABOUT THE TIME IT

        13  WAS SENT.

        14  A.   I DON'T RECALL THE SPECIFIC RECEIPT OF IT, BUT AS I

        15  SAID EARLIER, I HAVE NO REASON TO BELIEVE THAT I DID NOT

        16  RECEIVE IT.

        17  Q.   WERE YOU AWARE OF THIS DOCUMENT WHEN YOU PREPARED

        18  YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

        19  A.   THIS PARTICULAR DOCUMENT?  YOU WOULD NEED TO LET ME

        20  READ IT.

        21  Q.   CERTAINLY.

        22  A.   BUT I DON'T BELIEVE THAT I DID ACTUALLY LOOK AT THIS

        23  PARTICULAR DOCUMENT.

        24  Q.   IF YOU WOULD LIKE TO READ IT, FEEL FREE TO.

        25  A.   THANK YOU.

                                                           52

         1  Q.   AND JUST LET ME KNOW WHEN YOU'RE READY TO PROCEED.

         2           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

         3  A.   GO AHEAD, MR. BOIES.

         4  Q.   IS IT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT

         5  MICROSOFT, WITH RESPECT TO ITS DISCUSSIONS WITH APPLE

         6  LEADING UP TO THE AUGUST 1997 AGREEMENT, HAD ORIGINALLY

         7  PROPOSED TO HAVE A DEAL WITH THE THREE ELEMENTS THAT

         8  MR. GATES IDENTIFIES HERE?

         9  A.   I HAVE NO REASON TO DOUBT THAT.  I DON'T KNOW

        10  SPECIFICALLY WHICH PROPOSAL HE'S REFERRING TO HERE.  MY

        11  UNDERSTANDING IS THERE WERE SEVERAL OVER THE PERIOD OF

        12  TIME '96-97.

        13  Q.   WELL, THIS IS IN JULY OF 1997; CORRECT, SIR?

        14  A.   CORRECT.

        15  Q.   THIS IS THE MONTH BEFORE THE AGREEMENT WAS ACTUALLY

        16  SIGNED; IS THAT CORRECT?

        17  A.   CORRECT.

        18  Q.   AND INDEED, IT IS BETWEEN TWO AND THREE WEEKS BEFORE

        19  YOU SAY AN AGREEMENT, IN PRINCIPLE, WAS REACHED; IS THAT

        20  CORRECT?

        21  A.   CORRECT.

        22  Q.   NOW, WHEN APPLE AND MICROSOFT DID FINALLY AGREE, THEY

        23  ENTERED INTO NOT JUST ONE AGREEMENT BUT SEVERAL

        24  AGREEMENTS; CORRECT?

        25  A.   MY UNDERSTANDING, IT WAS ONE AGREEMENT THAT HAD
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         1  SEVERAL ASPECTS TO IT.  AS FAR AS I RECALL, THERE WAS ONLY

         2  ONE DOCUMENT SIGNED.

         3  Q.   HAVE YOU EVER SEEN THE DOCUMENT?

         4  A.   I HAVE.

         5  Q.   LET ME PUT GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1167 IN FRONT OF THE

         6  WITNESS AND SEE IF THAT IS--

         7  A.   I WOULD JUST LIKE TO POINT OUT BEFORE WE GO ON, THAT

         8  CONSISTENT WITH MY EARLIER TESTIMONY, THIS PARTICULAR

         9  DOCUMENT YOU SHOWED ME HERE REFERS TO THE TIME WHEN GIL

        10  AMELIO WAS STILL PRESIDENT OF APPLE, OR CEO.  AND AS I

        11  TESTIFIED, THINGS CHANGED VERY ABRUPTLY WHEN MR. AMELIO

        12  LEFT, WHICH HAPPENED WITHIN DAYS OR WEEK OF THE DATE OF

        13  THIS PIECE OF MAIL, AND THERE WAS NEW NEGOTIATION STARTED

        14  BETWEEN MR. JOBS AND MR. MAFFEI.

        15  Q.   SIR, YOU'RE NOT SUGGESTING, ARE YOU, THAT WHEN

        16  MR. AMELIO LEFT AND MR. JOBS CAME THAT MICROSOFT'S GOALS

        17  FOR WHAT MICROSOFT WAS TRYING TO ACHIEVE CHANGED, ARE YOU?

        18  A.   NO.  WHAT I'M POINTING OUT TO YOU IS WHAT OUR

        19  PRIORITIES WERE, AND MR. MAFFEI POINTS OUT THAT OUR

        20  PRIORITY WAS SECURING A PATENT EXCHANGE.  AND IN

        21  NEGOTIATIONS, MR. MAFFEI, HE FIRST OF ALL SECURED WERE, IN

        22  HIS CONSIDERATION, THE ESSENTIAL DEAL, THE TERMS OF THE

        23  DEAL, AND ONLY THEN MOVED ON TO INTERNET EXPLORER.

        24  Q.   WELL, SIR, LET ME TRY TO DEAL WITH THIS SINCE YOU

        25  BROUGHT IT UP.
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         1           FIRST, IT IS CLEAR THAT IN 1996, WHEN WE HAD THE

         2  FIRST GATES STATEMENT IN APRIL OF '97, WHEN MR. MAFFEI

         3  WRITES THE PROPOSAL, AND IN JULY OF 1997, WHEN MR. GATES

         4  WRITES THIS, THAT IT IS THE INTENTION OF MR. GATES AND

         5  MR. MAFFEI TO GET INTERNET EXPLORER THE DEFAULT BROWSER;

         6  CORRECT?

         7  A.   THAT WAS ONE OF THE INTENTIONS.  MY TESTIMONY IS THAT

         8  OUR OVERWHELMING OBJECTIVE WAS TO GET THE PATENT ISSUES

         9  SETTLED.  THE PATENT ISSUE FOR US WAS AN EXTREMELY SERIOUS

        10  ISSUE.  WE WERE VERY CONCERNED THAT WE MIGHT BE FACING A

        11  CASE OF WHAT'S KNOWN IN THE INDUSTRY AS "PATENT

        12  TERRORISM," WHICH IS WHERE YOU HAVE A BUSINESS THAT GOING

        13  OUT OF BUSINESS AND HAS AS ITS ONLY ASSETS LEFT BASICALLY

        14  PATENTS.  AND IT'S VERY DIFFICULT TO DEAL WITH A COMPANY

        15  IN THAT SITUATION BECAUSE THERE IS NO WAY OF USING YOUR

        16  OWN PATENTS IN DEFENSE BECAUSE, ESSENTIALLY, THEY HAVE NO

        17  BUSINESS LEFT.  SO, WE WERE VERY CONCERNED ABOUT THAT.

        18           AND WHAT I'M TESTIFYING TO HERE IS THAT IN THE

        19  FINAL NEGOTIATIONS BETWEEN MR. MAFFEI AND MR. JOBS,

        20  MR. MAFFEI SAID HE SECURED FIRST WHAT HE CONSIDERED TO BE

        21  THE ESSENTIAL POINTS OF THE DEAL AND THEN AGREED AFTER

        22  THAT WITH MR. JOBS THAT THERE WOULD BE THE INTERNET

        23  EXPLORER INCLUDED AS WELL.

        24  Q.   NOW, IF I COULD, WHAT I WOULD LIKE TO DO IS JUST

        25  FOCUS ON THE PIECES ONE BY ONE AND SEE WHETHER WE COULD
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         1  REACH SOME CLOSURE ON THIS ISSUE, SIR.

         2  A.   I WOULD BE HAPPY TO DO SO, MR. BOIES.

         3  Q.   FIRST, THERE WAS A DOCUMENT ON JUNE 25, 1996,

         4  GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 260.

         5  A.   IS THAT THE ONE HAVE YOU ALREADY GIVEN ME?

         6  Q.   YOU HAVE ALL OF THESE.

         7  A.   RIGHT.

         8  Q.   NOW, IN THIS ONE, WHERE MR. GATES WRITES TO YOU, HE

         9  DOESN'T SAY ANYTHING ABOUT AN OVERRIDING NEED TO HAVE A

        10  PATENT LICENSE AGREEMENT OR TO AVOID PATENT TERRORISM,

        11  DOES HE, SIR?

        12  A.   HE DID NOT NEED TO SAY THAT TO ME.

        13           THERE ARE TWO POINTS OF BACKGROUND HERE.  ONE,

        14  THIS IS PRIMARILY ADDRESSING TECHNICAL ASPECTS OF WHAT A

        15  DEAL COULD BE, AS EVIDENCED BY THE FACT THAT HE'S

        16  ADDRESSING THAT TO MYSELF AND MR. SILVERBERG WHO ARE

        17  RESPONSIBLE FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THESE TECHNOLOGIES.

        18           AND SECONDLY, I KNOW FOR A FACT, AS HE INCLUDES

        19  AT THE END OF THE PIECE OF MAIL HERE, THAT THE PATENT

        20  ISSUE WAS A MAJOR ISSUE FOR US.  WE HAD INITIALLY RAISED

        21  THIS TO APPLE IN 1993, WHEN WE CONSIDERED WHAT COULD BE

        22  THE THREATS TO THE LAUNCH OF WINDOWS 95.

        23  Q.   NOW, MR. GATES DOESN'T USE YOUR WORDS "MAJOR ISSUE,"

        24  DOES HE, SIR?  HE ONLY--

        25  A.   SORRY, GO AHEAD.  I APOLOGIZE FOR INTERRUPTING YOU.
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         1  Q.   I KNOW YOU'RE ANXIOUS, BUT LET ME TRY TO GET THE

         2  QUESTION OUT.

         3           THE ONLY GOALS THAT HE PRIORITIZES ARE THE TWO

         4  KEY GOALS THAT HE PRIORITIZED ON THE FIRST PAGE; IS THAT

         5  FAIR?

         6  A.   HE--

         7  Q.   IN THIS MEMORANDUM.

         8  A.   IN THIS MEMORANDUM ADDRESSED TO MYSELF AND

         9  MR. SILVERBERG, THE TECHNICAL PEOPLE CONCERNED, HE

        10  SAYS--HE'S POINTING OUT TO US THAT HE'S TRYING TO ACHIEVE

        11  TWO KEY GOALS IN THE TECHNICAL DIMENSION OF OUR

        12  RELATIONSHIP WITH APPLE.

        13  Q.   NOW, LET ME GO TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 1046, WHICH IS

        14  THE APRIL 27 MAFFEI PROPOSAL.

        15           NOW, THERE IS NOTHING IN HERE ABOUT THE PATENT

        16  CROSS-LICENSE BEING THE MAJOR GOAL OR AN OVERRIDING GOAL

        17  OR ANY CONCERN ABOUT PATENT TERRORISM, IS THERE, SIR, IN

        18  THIS DOCUMENT HERE?

        19  A.   WELL, THIS IS A DOCUMENT ADDRESSED TO APPLE WITH WHOM

        20  HE'S NEGOTIATING.  I WOULD HARDLY CONSIDER IT LIKELY THAT

        21  HE WOULD USE A PHRASE LIKE "PATENT TERRORISM" IN A

        22  COMMUNICATION WITH APPLE.

        23  Q.   WELL, HE DIDN'T USE THAT IN HIS COMMUNICATION WITH

        24  YOU BACK IN JUNE OF 1996 EITHER, DID HE, SIR?

        25  A.   HE DID NOT, AND I EXPLAINED THE CONTEXT FOR THAT.
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         1  Q.   NOW, LET'S GO TO JULY 1, 1997.  AND HE'S TALKING HERE

         2  ABOUT THE GOALS AND YOUR PROPOSED DEAL, MICROSOFT'S

         3  PROPOSE DEAL.  HE TALKS ABOUT THE BROWSER, TALKS ABOUT

         4  OFFICE, TALKS ABOUT THE PATENT EXCHANGE.  BUT AGAIN, HE

         5  DOESN'T SAY THE PATENT EXCHANGE IS THE MOST IMPORTANT ITEM

         6  OR AN OVERRIDING ITEM, AND HE DOESN'T SAY TO YOU, "BE

         7  CAREFUL ABOUT PATENT TERRORISM."

         8  A.   AGAIN, YOU GOT TO LOOK AT THE CONTEXT OF THIS

         9  PARTICULAR PIECE OF E-MAIL.  IT'S ADDRESSED TO MYSELF AS

        10  THE TECHNICAL MANAGER CONCERNED HERE.  AND HE POINTS OUT

        11  THAT, IN THE DISCUSSION DOWN BELOW, HE SAYS THAT HE REALLY

        12  WANTS US TO THINK ABOUT POSSIBLE WAYS TO EXTEND THE

        13  OPERATING SYSTEM COOPERATION WITH APPLE.

        14           SO AGAIN, HE'S NOT TRYING TO COVER ALL ASPECTS OF

        15  THE DEAL HERE.  HE'S TRYING TO COVER THAT ASPECT WHICH

        16  WOULD HAVE BEEN MOST PERTINENT TO MYSELF.  AND AS ALWAYS,

        17  HE POINTS OUT THAT THERE CAN BE NO DEAL UNLESS WE GET THE

        18  PATENT ISSUES TAKEN CARE OF.

        19  Q.   HE DOES, IN FACT, COVER BOTH THE PATENT ASPECTS AND

        20  THE BROWSER ASPECTS IN THIS MEMORANDUM; RIGHT?

        21  A.   HE MENTIONS THAT, YES.

        22  Q.   YES.  AND HE DOESN'T SAY THAT THE PATENT ASPECTS IS

        23  THE OVERRIDING--

        24  A.   HE DIDN'T NEED TO.  I MEAN, THE POINT OF THIS MAIL

        25  WAS NOT TO MAKE THAT POINT.  THE POINT OF THE MAIL IS TO
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         1  EXPLORE TECHNICAL COOPERATION.

         2  Q.   NOW, SIR, IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT YOU HAVE TRIED TO

         3  FIND ANYTHING YOU CAN IN MICROSOFT'S FILES TO TRY TO

         4  INDICATE THAT THE PATENT DEAL WAS THE PRIMARY OR THE

         5  OVERRIDING POINT OF THE AUGUST AGREEMENTS?

         6  A.   THE QUESTION IS HAVE I DONE EVERYTHING I CAN TO FIND

         7  SOMETHING?

         8  Q.   YOU'RE HERE AS A SUMMARY WITNESS.

         9  A.   CORRECT.

        10  Q.   AND I DON'T MEAN JUST YOU PERSONALLY, BUT IS IT FAIR

        11  TO SAY THAT MICROSOFT WANTS TO MAKE THE POINT THAT IT WAS

        12  REALLY PATENTS THAT WAS DRIVING THIS DEAL, NOT INTERNET

        13  EXPLORER?  RIGHT?

        14  A.   CORRECT.

        15  Q.   AND YOU KNOW WE GOT A LOT OF DOCUMENTS THAT TALK

        16  ABOUT INTERNET EXPLORER; RIGHT?

        17  A.   CORRECT.

        18  Q.   AND IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT YOU MADE AN EFFORT TO SEE

        19  IF YOU COULD FIND ANY DOCUMENTS THAT WOULD TALK ABOUT HOW

        20  IMPORTANT THE PATENT DEAL WAS?

        21  A.   I BELIEVE THAT WE HAVE GONE THROUGH OUR FILES, AND WE

        22  HAVE PRODUCED WHAT WE CONSIDERED TO BE THE BACKUP

        23  DOCUMENTATION, THE DEAL IN QUESTION HAS BEEN ENTERED INTO

        24  EVIDENCE.  AND, IN PARTICULAR, WE ENTERED INTO EVIDENCE

        25  MR. MAFFEI'S MAIL WHICH MAKES THAT POINT.
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         1  Q.   NOW, MR. MAFFEI'S MAIL, DO YOU HAVE THAT IN FRONT OF

         2  YOU?

         3  A.   I DON'T, SORRY.  I WOULD NEED A MINUTE TO GO FIND IT.

         4  Q.   OKAY.  THAT'S DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2252, AND I THINK

         5  IT WAS ATTACHED TO YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY.

         6  A.   IT IS.  AND I WILL--2252.

         7           GO AHEAD, MR. BOIES.

         8  Q.   NOW, I TAKE IT THIS WAS ONE OF THE DOCUMENTS THAT

         9  MICROSOFT FOUND WHEN IT WAS TRYING TO FIND SOME SUPPORT

        10  FOR THE PATENT POSITION?

        11  A.   WELL, THE PARTICULAR DOCUMENT WE DIDN'T JUST FIND IT.

        12  IN INTERVIEWING MR. MAFFEI, FOR HIS RECOLLECTION OF THE

        13  EVENTS, THIS IS WHAT HE RECALLS, AND THIS DOCUMENT IS TO

        14  BOLSTER THAT RECOLLECTION.

        15  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHY THIS DOCUMENT WASN'T PRODUCED TO US

        16  IN DISCOVERY?

        17  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT QUESTION.

        18  Q.   NOW, IN THIS DOCUMENT, IS THERE ANYTHING THAT SAYS

        19  THE PATENT ISSUE IS THE OVERRIDING CONCERN?

        20  A.   YOU NEED TO GIVE ME A SECOND TO READ THROUGH IT

        21  AGAIN.

        22  Q.   SURE.

        23  A.   BUT I BELIEVE THESE ARE THE KEY POINTS.

        24           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

        25  A.   HE DOESN'T MENTION THE PATENT SUIT IS AN OVERRIDING
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         1  CONCERN, BUT AS I SAID, IT'S TAKEN FOR GRANTED.  AND IF

         2  YOU READ THE LAST SENTENCE OF THE SECOND TO LAST PARAGRAPH

         3  THERE, HE SAYS, "I TOLD HIM WE WERE WILLING TO FIGHT A

         4  PATENT SUIT AND POINTED OUT THAT SUN AND ORACLE WOULD BE

         5  FAR LESS ATTRACTIVE PLAINTIFFS SUING WITH PATENTS

         6  THAN--THAT IT PURCHASED FROM APPLE THAN APPLE ITSELF."

         7           SO, THIS WHOLE DISCUSSION IS TAKING PLACE IN THE

         8  CONTEXT OF SETTLING A PATENT DISPUTE.

         9  Q.   WELL, SINCE YOU MENTIONED THAT LAST PARAGRAPH, SIR,

        10  IN THAT PARAGRAPH HE SAYS THAT HE TOLD APPLE THAT EVEN IF

        11  YOU DIDN'T SETTLE THE PATENT DISPUTE, YOU WOULD PROBABLY

        12  SHIP MACOFFICE ANYWAY; RIGHT?

        13  A.   WE HAD A VERSION OF MACOFFICE--ONE VERSION OF

        14  MACOFFICE THAT WAS READY TO SHIP, GETTING PRETTY CLOSE TO

        15  SHIPMENT.  BUT WHAT WE MADE IT CLEAR TO APPLE IS WE WOULD

        16  NOT CONTINUE TO DO FUTURE VERSIONS OF MACOFFICE.

        17           SO, THE ISSUE HERE WAS OUR CONTINUING TO PUT

        18  EFFORT INTO DEVELOPING APPLICATIONS FOR AN ENTITY THAT WAS

        19  ESSENTIALLY TRYING TO PUT US OUT OF BUSINESS.

        20  Q.   WHAT HE'S TOLD APPLE WAS THAT YOU WERE GOING TO SHIP

        21  MACOFFICE EVEN IF YOU DIDN'T HAVE A PATENT DEAL; RIGHT?

        22  A.   NO, WHAT HE TOLD APPLE WAS THAT IN THE CONTEXT OF A

        23  PATENT SUIT, THAT WE WOULD BE COMPELLED TO ANNOUNCE TO THE

        24  WORLD THAT WE WOULD NOT BE DOING FUTURE VERSIONS OF

        25  MACOFFICE, AND--
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         1  Q.   BUT DOES THAT SAY THAT IN HERE?

         2  A.   I DON'T SEE THAT IN HERE, BUT I KNOW THAT WAS SAID TO

         3  APPLE ON PREVIOUS OCCASIONS.

         4  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT DESPITE WHATEVER

         5  EFFORTS YOU MADE, AND I ASSUME THEY HAVE BEEN DILIGENT,

         6  YOU HAVE NOT FOUND ANY DOCUMENT IN MICROSOFT'S FILES THAT

         7  HAS SAID THAT THE PATENT LICENSE WAS THE OVERRIDING

         8  CONCERN OR THE PRIMARY CONCERN OR THE PRIMARY MOTIVATION

         9  FOR DOING THE AUGUST 27 OR THE AUGUST 1997 AGREEMENTS?

        10  A.   I DON'T KNOW.  THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS.  I

        11  DO KNOW THAT WE JUDGED THESE TO BE SUFFICIENT TO SUPPORT

        12  MY DIRECT TESTIMONY, AS WE WERE APPROACHING A LARGE NUMBER

        13  OF PAGES FOR MY DIRECT TESTIMONY, AND OUR GOAL HERE WAS TO

        14  REDUCE IT TO SOMETHING THAT COULD BE DIGESTED.

        15  Q.   WELL, SIR, YOU'RE NOT SUGGESTING, ARE YOU, THAT YOU

        16  HAD SOME OTHER GOOD DOCUMENTS THAT SHOWED THE PATENT IS

        17  REALLY IMPORTANT, BUT YOU LEFT IT OFF TO SAVE SPACE?

        18  A.   NO.  I'M SAYING I DON'T KNOW IF WE HAD ADDITIONAL

        19  DOCUMENTS.  OUR JUDGMENT IS THAT THIS IS WHAT SUPPORTED MY

        20  TESTIMONY.

        21  Q.   NOW, I WOULD LIKE TO ASK YOU TO LOOK AT--

        22           THE COURT:  WOULD YOU PUT THAT BACK UP AGAIN FOR

        23  JUST A MINUTE?

        24           MR. BOIES:  YES.

        25           THE COURT:  I'M NOT SURE THAT ANY OF THE FOUR
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         1  NUMBERED PARAGRAPHS MAKE MENTION OF THE PATENT DISPUTE.

         2           IS THE ONLY MENTION OF PATENT DISPUTE IN THIS

         3  DOCUMENT THAT WHICH IS FOUND IN THE PENULTIMATE PARAGRAPH

         4  DOWN HERE?

         5           THE WITNESS:  YES, YOUR HONOR.  THE POINT HERE IS

         6  IT WAS TAKEN FOR GRANTED THAT THERE WOULD BE NO AGREEMENT

         7  WITHOUT A PATENT RESOLUTION, SO WHAT MR. MAFFEI AND

         8  MR. JOBS WERE DISCUSSING HERE IS WHAT WOULD MICROSOFT

         9  COMMIT TO DO IN ORDER TO GET A PATENT SETTLEMENT.

        10           THE COURT:  BUT THERE IS NO OTHER ALLUSION TO IT

        11  THAT I'M MISSING--

        12           THE WITNESS:  I DON'T SEE ANY.  AS I SAID, IT'S

        13  MENTIONED DOWN BELOW.

        14           THE COURT:  OKAY.

        15           THE WITNESS:  I DON'T THINK HE WAS INTENDING TO

        16  EXCLUDE IT.

        17  BY MR. BOIES:

        18  Q.   AND IT ALSO WAS TAKEN FOR GRANTED THAT THERE WOULD BE

        19  AN AGREEMENT ON IE?

        20  A.   MR. MAFFEI--WHAT MR. MAFFEI TOLD ME IS HE ONLY EVEN

        21  RAISED THAT WITH MR. JOBS AFTER THESE FOUR BASIC POINTS

        22  HAD BEEN SETTLED.

        23  Q.   ON JULY 20TH UNDER THE TREE IN PALO ALTO?

        24  A.   JULY 20TH IS WHEN THEY RAISED IE FOR THE FIRST TIME.

        25  I BELIEVE, AS HE'S INDICATING HERE, HE ALREADY GOT
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         1  AGREEMENT.  OR SORRY, THAT JULY 20 IS WHEN HE AGREED ON

         2  THIS AND THEN RAISED IT LATER.

         3  Q.   I'M SORRY, I DIDN'T QUITE UNDERSTAND WHAT YOU WERE

         4  SAYING THERE.

         5  A.   LET ME JUST GO BACK AND CHECK 384 AGAIN SO I CAN GET

         6  THE CHRONOLOGY STRAIGHT IN MY MIND.

         7  Q.   SURE.

         8  A.   YES, MR. MAFFEI TESTIFIES HERE HE AGREED TO THE BASIC

         9  TERMS THAT ARE OUTLINED IN THE MAIL THAT WE JUST BEEN

        10  LOOKING AT, AND HE RAISED THE SUBJECT OF INTERNET EXPLORER

        11  ON JULY 20TH.

        12  Q.   JUST SO THE CHRONOLOGY IS CLEAR, WHAT YOU SAID IS

        13  THAT MR. MAFFEI RAISED THE ISSUE OF INTERNET EXPLORER ON

        14  JULY 20; CORRECT, SIR?

        15  A.   THAT'S WHAT HE TOLD ME.

        16  Q.   RIGHT.  NOW, IN THIS PARTICULAR E-MAIL WHICH IS DATED

        17  THE NEXT DAY, JULY 21, HE PURPORTS TO SET FORTH HIS,

        18  MR. MAFFEI'S, MICROSOFT PROPOSAL AND MR. JOBS'S RESPONSE

        19  GIVEN ON JULY 21; CORRECT, SIR?

        20  A.   CORRECT.

        21  Q.   AND--

        22  A.   AS HE'S POINTING OUT HERE, THOSE WERE THE BROADER

        23  TERMS THAT HE AGREED WITH MR. JOBS AND REFERS TO HERE AS

        24  HAVING BEEN SETTLED BEFORE THE ISSUE OF INTERNET EXPLORER

        25  WAS RAISED.
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         1  Q.   WELL, WHERE DOES HE SAY THESE WERE SETTLED BEFORE

         2  INTERNET EXPLORER WAS RAISED?

         3  A.   HE DOESN'T SAY THAT IN THAT PARTICULAR E-MAIL.

         4  Q.   INDEED, WHAT HE SAYS IN THIS PARTICULAR E-MAIL IS

         5  THAT BEFORE JULY 21, THE ISSUES WEREN'T SETTLED--RIGHT,

         6  SIR?--BECAUSE THE PROPOSAL AND RESPONSE WAS MADE IN THE

         7  AFTERNOON OF JULY 21.

         8  A.   LET ME GO BACK TO 1046.

         9           I'M SORRY, IT'S NOT 1046.  IT'S--2252.

        10  Q.   IT'S DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2252.

        11  A.   HIS TESTIMONY IS THAT IN HIS DISCUSSIONS WITH

        12  MR. JOBS, HE HAD DONE THIS IN TWO PHASES.  PHASE ONE WAS

        13  TO AGREE WITH THESE FOUR POINTS, AND THEN LATER THEY

        14  RAISED THE SUBJECT OF INTERNET EXPLORER.

        15  Q.   HE DOESN'T SAY THAT IN THIS E-MAIL?

        16  A.   NO.  HE POINTS OUT THE THINGS HE CONSIDERED WORTHY OF

        17  COMMUNICATING TO MR. GATES WERE THAT HE SETTLED THESE FOUR

        18  KEY POINTS.

        19  Q.   JUST SO THAT IT'S CLEAR, MR. MAFFEI NEVER WROTE

        20  ANYTHING DOWN THAT SAID HE SETTLED ONE PHASE AND WENT ON

        21  TO ANOTHER PHASE, DID HE?

        22  A.   HE DIDN'T--HE DIDN'T WRITE ANYTHING DOWN.  WHAT HE

        23  DID SAY BOTH IN THIS E-MAIL AND TO ME THAT IN DISCUSSING

        24  THINGS WITH MR. JOBS, THEY HAD DONE IT IN TWO STEPS.

        25  Q.   YOU SAID--HE SAID IT TO YOU AND IN THE E-MAIL?
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         1  A.   IN THE E-MAIL.

         2  Q.   TWO STEPS IN THE E-MAIL?

         3  A.   NO, WHAT I SAID HERE IS HE SAID HE HAD DONE IT IN TWO

         4  STEPS AND THAT STEP ONE WAS THE IMPORTANT TERMS.  THIS

         5  E-MAIL OUTLINES TO MR. GATES WHAT HE CONSIDERS TO BE THE

         6  IMPORTANT TERMS.

         7  Q.   AND THERE IS NO MENTION HERE OF A CROSS-LICENSE

         8  AGREEMENT, IS THERE?

         9  A.   THE WORDS "CROSS-LICENSE" DON'T OCCUR, BUT IT'S TAKEN

        10  FOR GRANTED.

        11           AS I SAID, IF YOU LOOK AT THE WHOLE HISTORY OF

        12  DISCUSSIONS WITH APPLE, INCLUDING THE OTHER MAILS THAT WE

        13  LOOKED AT, THE CROSS-LICENSE COMES UP.  SO, IT IS

        14  INCONCEIVABLE THAT THEY WOULD BE DOING A DEAL HERE WITHOUT

        15  A CROSS-LICENSE.

        16  Q.   LET ME ASK YOU AGAIN TO LOOK AT GOVERNMENT

        17  EXHIBIT 1167.  YOU SAID YOU HAD SEEN THE AGREEMENT, THE

        18  AUGUST 1997 AGREEMENT, AND I PUT BEFORE YOU GOVERNMENT

        19  EXHIBIT 1167, HEADED "TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT DATED AS OF

        20  AUGUST 5, 1997, BETWEEN APPLE COMPUTER AND MICROSOFT."

        21  A.   GIVE ME A SECOND HERE TO MAKE SURE I DON'T LOSE THESE

        22  VARIOUS EXHIBITS.

        23           IS THERE A PARTICULAR PORTION THAT YOU WANT TO

        24  REFER TO, MR. BOIES?

        25  Q.   YES, BUT FIRST LET ME ASK YOU WHETHER THIS IS THE
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         1  AGREEMENT THAT YOU SAY YOU HAVE SEEN.

         2  A.   I BELIEVE IT IS.

         3  Q.   ALL RIGHT.  NOW, THIS AGREEMENT IS AN AGREEMENT FOR

         4  MICROSOFT TO DO MACOFFICE AND FOR APPLE TO DISTRIBUTE

         5  INTERNET EXPLORER; CORRECT?

         6  A.   NO.

         7  Q.   I'M SORRY?

         8  A.   NO, IT'S NOT AN AGREEMENT TO DO JUST THAT.

         9  Q.   ALL RIGHT, SIR.  DOES IT--OTHER THAN IN THE WHEREAS

        10  CLAUSE, WHICH SAYS THAT IN ANOTHER AGREEMENT THERE IS

        11  GOING TO BE A PREFERRED STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND A

        12  PATENT LICENSE AGREEMENT, DOES ANYTHING IN THIS AGREEMENT

        13  DEAL WITH EITHER OF THOSE TWO THINGS?

        14  A.   THE WHOLE POINT WAS THIS AGREEMENT WOULD NOT HAVE

        15  STOOD HAD IT NOT BEEN FOR THOSE TWO AGREEMENTS, SO THESE

        16  THREE AGREEMENTS WERE BEING DONE AS A WHOLE.  AS IT SAYS

        17  HERE, "WHEREAS APPLE AND MICROSOFT ARE ENTERING INTO A

        18  PREFERRED STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND A PATENT

        19  CROSS-LICENSE AGREEMENT CONCURRENTLY HEREWITH."

        20  Q.   AND DIDN'T YOU TELL ME THAT THE MACOFFICE AGREEMENT

        21  WAS JUST ONE AGREEMENT?

        22  A.   I UNDERSTOOD IT TO BE ONE COLLECTION OF AGREEMENTS.

        23  AND WHEN AGREEMENT LIKE THIS REFERS TO THE OTHER

        24  AGREEMENTS AS BEING CONCURRENTLY HEREWITH, IT'S MY

        25  UNDERSTANDING THAT THEY FORM A WHOLE.  I'M NOT A LAWYER,
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         1  BUT I KNOW THAT WE ANTICIPATE--WE VIEWED THESE AS A SINGLE

         2  DEAL.

         3  Q.   LET'S JUST DEAL WITH WHAT THE WRITTEN SIGNED DOCUMENT

         4  SAYS, AND LET'S SEE IF WE COULD GET AGREEMENT ON WHAT IT

         5  SAYS.

         6  A.   CORRECT.

         7           THE COURT:  IS THE OTHER AGREEMENT IN EVIDENCE?

         8           MR. BOIES:  THE PREFER STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT

         9  AND THE PATENT CROSS-LICENSE AGREEMENT?

        10           THE COURT:  YES.

        11           MR. WARDEN:  I THINK THEY WERE INTRODUCED DURING

        12  DR. TEVANIAN'S TESTIMONY.

        13           MR. BOIES:  I BELIEVE THEY ALL WENT IN.

        14           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT, THANK YOU.

        15           THE WITNESS:  BY THE WAY, MR. BOIES, I THINK YOU

        16  WOULD KNOW, AS A LAWYER, THAT IT'S QUITE COMMON TO DO

        17  HIGHLY TECHNICAL AGREEMENTS SUCH AS A PATENT AGREEMENT AND

        18  A STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT AS A SEPARATE BODY OF PAPER AND

        19  TO REFER TO THEM IN THE--IN ANOTHER AGREEMENT.

        20  BY MR. BOIES:

        21  Q.   IS THAT YOUR EXPERIENCE?

        22  A.   THAT'S BEEN MY EXPERIENCE.

        23  Q.   HAVE YOU BEEN INVOLVED IN OTHER PATENT CROSS-LICENSE

        24  AGREEMENTS?

        25  A.   I HAVE.
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         1  Q.   AND HAVE THEY ALSO OR ANY OF THEM INVOLVED ADDITIONAL

         2  AGREEMENTS WHEREBY THE COMPANY THAT YOU'RE DEALING WITH IS

         3  GOING TO DISTRIBUTE INTERNET EXPLORER?

         4  A.   NOT DISTRIBUTE INTERNET EXPLORER, BUT I'M AWARE OF

         5  OTHER AGREEMENTS WHERE WE, FOR INSTANCE, DONE A STOCK

         6  PURCHASE AGREEMENT WHICH IS BEING HANDLED IN A SEPARATE

         7  AGREEMENT.

         8  Q.   YES, AND THERE WAS A STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT, AND

         9  THERE WAS A PATENT CROSS-LICENSE AGREEMENT, BUT THIS IS A

        10  TECHNOLOGY AGREEMENT.  DOESN'T DEAL WITH PREFERRED STOCK

        11  OR WITH PATENTS; RIGHT?

        12  A.   BUT IT MAKES CLEAR REFERENCE TO IT, AND MAKES CLEAR

        13  REFERENCE THAT PARTIES TO THESE AGREEMENTS WERE ENTERING

        14  INTO THREE AGREEMENTS CONCURRENTLY.

        15  Q.   YES.  AT LEAST THREE ANYWAY.  IT REFERS TO TWO

        16  OTHERS.

        17  A.   YES.

        18  Q.   BUT WITH RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT, WHAT IT SAYS IS

        19  THAT, FIRST, MICROSOFT IS GOING TO MAKE MICROSOFT OFFICE

        20  FOR MACINTOSH GENERALLY AVAILABLE; RIGHT?

        21  A.   YOU NEED TO ALLOW ME A MINUTE TO READ THROUGH IT.

        22  AGAIN, THIS IS A TEN- OR TWELVE-PAGE DOCUMENT.  IS THERE A

        23  PARTICULAR SECTION OF IT YOU WOULD LIKE ME TO READ?

        24  Q.   WELL, I GUESS I WOULD LIKE YOU TO READ POINT TWO AND

        25  THREE SUFFICIENT SO THAT YOU CAN UNDERSTAND THE FOLLOWING
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         1  POINTS, WHICH I THINK ARE PRETTY OBVIOUS, BUT YOU TELL ME.

         2  A.   OKAY.

         3  Q.   ONE IS THAT MICROSOFT IS AGREEING TO MAKE MICROSOFT

         4  OFFICE AVAILABLE FOR THE MACINTOSH.

         5  A.   CORRECT.

         6  Q.   TWO, APPLE IS AGREEING TO MAKE IE ITS PREFERRED

         7  BROWSER, ITS DEFAULT BROWSER AND ITS PROMOTED BROWSER, BUT

         8  ONLY SO LONG AS MICROSOFT IS DEVELOPING AND RELEASING

         9  MICROSOFT OFFICE.

        10  A.   THOSE ARE THE TWO QUESTIONS?

        11  Q.   YES.

        12  A.   GIVE ME A FEW SECONDS OR MINUTES, AND I WILL LET YOU

        13  KNOW WHEN I'M READY.

        14           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

        15  A.   GO AHEAD, MR. BOIES.

        16  Q.   HAVE YOU READ IT ENOUGH TO BE ABLE TO ANSWER MY

        17  QUESTION?

        18  A.   I THINK SO.

        19  Q.   AND WHAT IS THE ANSWER?

        20  A.   IF YOU COULD REPEAT YOUR QUESTION, THEN I WILL BE

        21  ABLE TO GIVE YOU A PRECISE ANSWER.

        22  Q.   IN THIS AGREEMENT, WHAT'S BASICALLY GOING ON IS THAT

        23  MICROSOFT IS AGREEING TO DEVELOP AND RELEASE MICROSOFT

        24  OFFICE FOR MACINTOSH, AND APPLE IS AGREEING THAT AS LONG

        25  AS MICROSOFT DOES THAT, BUT ONLY SO LONG AS MICROSOFT DOES
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         1  THAT, APPLE IS GOING TO BUNDLE IE, MAKE IE THE DEFAULT

         2  BROWSER, AND PROMOTE IE.

         3  A.   THERE IS A LINKAGE BETWEEN THE TIME FRAMES.  IN OTHER

         4  WORDS, WHERE USING THE DURATION DURING WHICH WE WOULD BE

         5  OBLIGED TO DO OFFICE TO ALSO GIVE A DURATION FOR INTERNET

         6  EXPLORER.

         7           BUT AS I SAID EARLIER, THESE THREE AGREEMENTS

         8  WERE NEGOTIATED TOGETHER.

         9  Q.   NOW, YOU DIDN'T PARTICIPATE IN THE NEGOTIATION, DID

        10  YOU, SIR?

        11  A.   I REVIEWED THE AGREEMENTS, BUT I DIDN'T PARTICIPATE

        12  IN THE NEGOTIATIONS MYSELF.

        13  Q.   LET ME JUST BE SURE THAT I GOT YOUR TESTIMONY.

        14           FIRST, IN THIS AGREEMENT, MICROSOFT IS AGREEING

        15  TO DEVELOP AND RELEASE MACOFFICE FOR THE MACINTOSH; IS

        16  THAT RIGHT?

        17  A.   CORRECT.

        18  Q.   NOW, AND MAYBE WE CAN GET A BLOWUP OF SECTION THREE.

        19  SECTION THREE IS LABELED "BUNDLING."  APPLE AGREES TO

        20  BUNDLE THE MOST CURRENT VERSION OF IE WITH MACINTOSH, BUT

        21  ONLY FOR SO LONG AS MICROSOFT IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH 2.1

        22  ABOVE, WHICH IS WHERE THEY SAY THEY'RE GOING TO DEVELOP

        23  MACOFFICE, AND HAS NOT ELECTED TO CEASE FURTHER

        24  DEVELOPMENT AND RELEASES OF MICROSOFT OFFICE FOR

        25  MACINTOSH.
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         1           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         2  A.   I SEE THAT.

         3  Q.   AND WAS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF

         4  WHAT THE DEAL WAS?

         5  A.   IT'S NEITHER CONSISTENT OR NOT CONSISTENT.  IT MERELY

         6  POINTS OUT THAT WE WERE USING THE SAME PERIOD TO DEFINE

         7  WHEN APPLE WOULD BE OBLIGED TO SHIP INTERNET EXPLORER.

         8  BUT AS I SAID EARLIER, WE ENTERED INTO THREE CONCURRENT

         9  AGREEMENTS, AND WHEN YOU ENTER INTO THREE CONCURRENT

        10  AGREEMENTS, IT'S BECAUSE YOU BELIEVE THAT THEY ALL RELATE

        11  TO EACH OTHER AND FORM A LARGER WHOLE.

        12  Q.   AND THE THREE AGREEMENTS THAT YOU BELIEVE ALL RELATED

        13  TO EACH OTHER WERE THIS AGREEMENT AND THE PATENT LICENSE

        14  AND THE PREFERRED AGREEMENT; RIGHT?

        15  A.   CORRECT.

        16  Q.   NOW, JUST FOCUSING ON THIS AGREEMENT, IS THIS

        17  AGREEMENT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT THE

        18  PARTIES HAD AGREED TO WITH RESPECT TO MICROSOFT OFFICE AND

        19  IE?

        20  A.   THIS AGREEMENT SPELLS OUT CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS THAT WE

        21  HAVE TO DEVELOP MACOFFICE, AND IT SPELLS OUT CERTAIN

        22  OBLIGATIONS THAT APPLE HAD TO SHIP INTERNET EXPLORER, AND

        23  THEY FORMED PART OF THE LARGER AGREEMENT THAT WE HAD OF

        24  WHICH THIS AGREEMENT FORMED A PART.

        25  Q.   WAS THERE ANYTHING IN THE PATENT CROSS-LICENSE

                                                           72

         1  AGREEMENT OR THE PREFERRED STOCK AGREEMENT THAT MENTIONED

         2  IE OR MENTIONED MICROSOFT OFFICE?

         3  A.   IT DIDN'T HAVE TO BE.  AS I SAID, WE HAD PUT INTO THE

         4  THREE AGREEMENTS THE THREE THINGS ONE WOULD NORMALLY DO.

         5  YOU PUT HIGHLY TECHNICAL STUFF IN THE PATENT AGREEMENT

         6  WHICH HAS A LOT OF SPECIFIC LANGUAGE IN IT THAT'S

         7  TYPICALLY VIEWED BY DIFFERENT SETS OF LAWYERS, SIMILARLY

         8  FOR THE STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT, AND WE PUT MAC AND IE

         9  INTO THIS AGREEMENT.  IT SIMPLY REFLECTS THE CONVENIENCE

        10  OF DOING THAT.

        11  Q.   AND FOR WHATEVER IT REFLECTS, ARE YOU AGREEING WITH

        12  ME THAT THERE IS NOTHING IN THE PREFERRED STOCK AGREEMENT

        13  OR THE PATENT LICENSE AGREEMENT THAT MENTIONS IE OR

        14  MICROSOFT OFFICE?

        15  A.   I AGREE WITH THAT, AND I'M POINTING OUT THAT THIS

        16  MERELY REPRESENTS HOW THE PARTIES CHOSE TO WRITE THINGS

        17  DOWN.

        18  Q.   NOW, ONE OF THE PARTIES THAT WAS CHOOSING HOW TO

        19  WRITE THINGS DOWN WAS MICROSOFT; CORRECT, SIR?

        20  A.   CORRECT.

        21  Q.   LET ME TURN TO A SUBJECT THAT I HOPE WILL BE BRIEF,

        22  AND IF IT ISN'T BRIEF, WE ARE GOING TO MAKE IT BRIEF

        23  TONIGHT.

        24  A.   I WILL TRY TO COOPERATE, MR. BOIES.

        25  Q.   THIS INVOLVES THINGS THAT YOU HAVE PERSONALLY SAID,
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         1  AND IN THAT CONNECTION--

         2  A.   ARE WE DONE WITH ALL THESE AGREEMENTS AND PUT THEM

         3  ASIDE?

         4  Q.   YOU COULD PUT THEM ASIDE.

         5           AND IN THIS CONNECTION I WANT TO DIRECT YOUR

         6  ATTENTION TO PARAGRAPH 334.

         7  A.   HAVE YOU SUBTRACTED ONE?

         8  Q.   I HAVE NOT.

         9           333.  AND IN PARTICULAR, THE BOTTOM OF THE PAGE,

        10  THIS IS A DISCUSSION OF MEETINGS THAT YOU HAD AT INTEL?

        11  A.   CORRECT.

        12  Q.   AND IN THE LAST SENTENCE YOU SAY, "I NEVER SAID IN

        13  THE PRESENCE OF INTEL PERSONNEL OR OTHERWISE, THAT

        14  MICROSOFT WOULD CUT OFF NETSCAPE'S AIR SUPPLY OR WORDS TO

        15  THAT EFFECT."

        16  A.   CORRECT.

        17  Q.   NOW, YOU SEEM PRETTY POSITIVE ABOUT THAT IN THIS

        18  TESTIMONY; IS THAT FAIR?

        19  A.   CORRECT.

        20  Q.   IN FACT, IN THE NEXT PAGE YOU SUGGEST THAT THE FACT

        21  THAT MR. MCGEADY SAID SOMETHING TO THE CONTRARY SHOULD GO

        22  TO HIS CREDIBILITY; CORRECT?

        23  A.   YOU WOULD HAVE TO LET ME READ IT AGAIN.

        24           I WOULD SAY IT SPEAKS VOLUMES ABOUT HIS ATTITUDE

        25  AND CREDIBILITY.
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         1  Q.   AND I TAKE IT THAT IT WOULD BE FAIR TO SAY THAT IN

         2  THE CONTEXT OF THAT STATEMENT WHEN YOU SAID SPEAKS

         3  VOLUMES, YOU MEANT TO MEAN NOT FAVORABLE VOLUMES; WOULD

         4  THAT BE FAIR?

         5  A.   THAT WOULD BE FAIR.

         6  Q.   NOW, WHEN YOUR DEPOSITION WAS TAKEN LAST OCTOBER, A

         7  FEW MONTHS AGO--

         8  A.   CORRECT.

         9  Q.   --YOU WERE CONSIDERABLY LESS POSITIVE ABOUT WHETHER

        10  YOU HAD SAID THIS OR NOT; CORRECT, SIR?

        11  A.   I DON'T BELIEVE SO.

        12  Q.   YOU DON'T?  HAVE YOU REVIEWED YOUR DEPOSITION?

        13  A.   I HAVE REVIEWED MY DEPOSITION, YES.

        14  Q.   ABOUT THIS SUBJECT?

        15  A.   NOT PARTICULARLY ON THIS SUBJECT, BUT I DO REMEMBER

        16  READING MY DEPOSITION TESTIMONY.

        17           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        18  Q.   NOW, THIS IS A DEPOSITION TAKEN OCTOBER 2, 1998; IS

        19  THAT CORRECT?

        20  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        21  Q.   AND LET ME DIRECT YOUR ATTENTION TO THE BOTTOM OF

        22  PAGE 253, AND THEN IT CONTINUES ON TO PAGE 254, AND AT THE

        23  VERY BOTTOM OF PAGE 253, THE QUESTION STARTS, (READING):

        24                "QUESTION:  IN THE COURSE OF ANY OF YOUR

        25           MEETINGS WITH INTEL, DID YOU TELL ANY OF THEIR
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         1           EXECUTIVES THAT MICROSOFT WOULD CUT OFF

         2           NETSCAPE'S AIR SUPPLY BY GIVING AWAY FOR FREE

         3           EVERYTHING THAT NETSCAPE WAS SELLING?

         4                ANSWER:  I HAVE NO RECOLLECTION OF SAYING

         5           THAT.

         6                QUESTION:  IS IT POSSIBLE YOU SAID THAT AND

         7           YOU JUST DON'T REMEMBER?

         8                ANSWER:  IT'S POSSIBLE, BUT I JUST DON'T

         9           RECALL IT.

        10                QUESTION:  DO YOU BELIEVE IT'S--

        11                ANSWER:  I DON'T BELIEVE IT'S SOMETHING THAT

        12           I WOULD LIKELY HAVE SAID.

        13                QUESTION:  IF SOMEONE FROM INTEL RECALLED

        14           YOU SAYING THAT, WOULD YOU THINK THAT THEY WERE

        15           WRONG ABOUT THAT RECOLLECTION?

        16                ANSWER:  I WOULD BE SKEPTICAL."

        17           NOW, WOULD YOU AGREE WITH ME THAT THAT IS A

        18  SOMEWHAT LESS THAN THE ABSOLUTE DENIAL THAT YOU MAKE IN

        19  YOUR WRITTEN DIRECT TESTIMONY?

        20  A.   I BASE MY STATEMENT HERE ON TWO THINGS.  ONE IS IT'S

        21  MY CLEAR RECOLLECTION OF THAT MEETING.  AND SECONDLY,

        22  SINCE I HAD THIS DEPOSITION, I HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO

        23  REVIEW THE THREE ACCOUNTS WRITTEN BY INTEL PERSONNEL OF

        24  THAT MEETING, NONE OF WHICH MAKES ANY MENTION OF THIS

        25  STATEMENT, INCLUDING MR. MCGEADY'S EIGHT OR NINE
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         1  HANDWRITTEN PAGES WHICH MAKE NO MENTION OF THAT PHRASE.

         2           SO, I BASE MY CERTAINTY ON MY RECOLLECTION AND

         3  HAVING REVIEWED THAT ADDITIONAL TESTIMONY.

         4  Q.   SO, IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT BASED ON THE WORK THAT YOU

         5  HAD DONE, YOUR RECOLLECTION IS MORE CERTAIN NOW THAN IT

         6  WAS BACK IN OCTOBER, WHICH WAS THE QUESTION I STARTED OUT

         7  WITH?

         8  A.   AS I SAID, I DON'T CONSIDER MY TESTIMONY BACK THEN TO

         9  BE THAT INCONSISTENT WITH WHAT I'M SAYING NOW.

        10  Q.   ALL RIGHT, SIR.  YOU ARE AWARE THAT SOME TIME AGO

        11  THERE WAS A NEW YORK TIMES ARTICLE THAT QUOTED YOU AS

        12  SAYING THIS?

        13  A.   YES, I AM.

        14  Q.   AND THAT PRECEDED YOUR DEPOSITION, DID IT NOT, SIR?

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   SO, THIS WAS NOT SOMETHING THAT WAS BROUGHT UP TO YOU

        17  FOR THE FIRST TIME IN YOUR DEPOSITION; CORRECT?

        18  A.   NO, BUT AT THE TIME I DIDN'T REGARD IT AS SOMETHING

        19  SERIOUS AT ALL.

        20           IN FACT, FOR A LONG TIME, IT WASN'T EVEN CLEAR

        21  WHO AT MICROSOFT HAD SAID THAT.

        22  Q.   YOU KNEW THAT FROM THE NEW YORK TIMES ARTICLE--

        23  A.   ACTUALLY, I DIDN'T KNOW FROM THE NEW YORK TIMES

        24  ARTICLE THAT IT WAS ATTRIBUTED TO MYSELF.  THE NEW YORK

        25  TIMES ARTICLE ONLY MENTIONED MICROSOFT EXECUTIVE, I
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         1  BELIEVE, AND IT WAS NOT UNTIL MUCH LATER IN THE OPENING

         2  PHASES OF THIS CASE THAT IT WAS ATTRIBUTED TO MYSELF.

         3  Q.   BY THE OPENING PHASES OF THIS CASE?

         4  A.   ONCE THE DEPOSITION HAD BEEN TAKEN OF MR. MCGEADY.

         5  Q.   DID YOU HAVE ANY DISCUSSIONS WITHIN MICROSOFT ABOUT

         6  WHO, IF ANYONE, HAD BEEN THE SOURCE OF THE SUGGESTION THAT

         7  MICROSOFT WOULD CUT OFF NETSCAPE'S AIR SUPPLY AS REPORTED

         8  IN THE NEW YORK TIMES?

         9  A.   NO.

        10  Q.   DID YOU, INSOFAR AS YOU'RE AWARE, ANYBODY AT

        11  MICROSOFT WRITE THE NEW YORK TIMES SAYING YOU GOT IT

        12  WRONG, NOBODY SAID THAT?

        13  A.   NOT TO MY KNOWLEDGE, I DID NOT.

        14  Q.   WERE YOU AWARE OF ANYONE AT MICROSOFT OTHER THAN

        15  YOURSELF SAYING WHAT YOU REFER TO HERE AS WORDS TO THAT

        16  EFFECT?

        17  A.   I'M NOT AWARE OF IT.

        18  Q.   ARE YOU AWARE OF QUOTATIONS ATTRIBUTED TO MR. GATES

        19  AND MR. BALLMER IN VARIOUS PUBLICATIONS THAT RELATE TO THE

        20  SUBJECT MATTER?

        21  A.   THERE COULD HAVE BEEN.  I'M NOT AWARE OF ANY AS I SIT

        22  HERE RIGHT NOW.

        23  Q.   LET ME JUST ASK YOU--

        24  A.   BY THE SUBJECT MATTER, I PRESUME YOU REFER TO

        25  NETSCAPE'S?
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         1  Q.   YES.

         2  A.   IT'S A VERY BROAD SUBJECT, AND I'M SURE AT SOME POINT

         3  IN TIME THEY BROUGHT UP THE SUBJECT OF NETSCAPE IN THE

         4  DISCUSSIONS.

         5  Q.   LET ME JUST PUT IN FRONT OF YOU GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

         6  7183 AND 84, ALL OF WHICH ARE IN EVIDENCE.  AT LEAST THE

         7  PORTIONS I'M GOING TO USE ARE IN EVIDENCE.

         8           LET ME GO FIRST TO GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT 71, WHICH

         9  IS A JUNE 10, 1996, FINANCIAL TIMES ARTICLE.

        10  A.   EXHIBIT 71.  AGAIN, IS THERE A SPECIFIC PART OF THE

        11  ARTICLE I SHOULD FOCUS ON?

        12  Q.   YES.  IT'S THE FOURTH PAGE AT THE TOP, WHERE

        13  MR. GATES IS QUOTE AS SAYING, QUOTE, OUR BUSINESS MODEL

        14  WORKS EVEN IF ALL INTERNET EXPLORER SOFTWARE IS FREE.  WE

        15  ARE STILL SELLING OPERATING SYSTEMS.  WHAT DOES NETSCAPE'S

        16  BUSINESS MODEL LOOK LIKE IF THAT HAPPENS?  NOT VERY GOOD.

        17           DO YOU SEE THAT, SIR?

        18  A.   YES.

        19  Q.   WERE YOU FAMILIAR IN OR ABOUT JUNE OF 1996 THAT

        20  MR. GATES HAD BEEN QUOTED AS SAYING THIS?

        21  A.   I DON'T RECALL THIS SPECIFICALLY, BUT AGAIN, I HAVE

        22  NO REASON TO DOUBT THAT THIS WASN'T THE--THIS WAS A QUOTE

        23  THAT WAS MADE IN AN ARTICLE.  WHETHER HE EXACTLY USED

        24  THOSE WORDS OR NOT, I HAVE NO WAY OF KNOWING.

        25  Q.   IS THIS CONSISTENT WITH MR. GATES'S VIEWS, AS YOU

                                                           79

         1  UNDERSTOOD THEM TO BE, IN OR ABOUT JUNE OF 1996?

         2  A.   YOU NEED TO GIVE ME A CHANCE NOW TO JUST READ THE

         3  PARAGRAPHS BEFORE AND AFTER, SO I COULD MAKE SURE THAT I

         4  UNDERSTAND THE CONTEXT.

         5  Q.   ABSOLUTELY, AND WHEN YOU FINISHED, PLEASE LET ME

         6  KNOW.

         7           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

         8  A.   GO AHEAD, MR. BOIES.

         9  Q.   IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH WHAT MR. GATES'S VIEWS WERE,

        10  AS YOU UNDERSTOOD THEM, IN 1996?

        11  A.   WELL, I'M NOT SURE EXACTLY WHAT MR. GATES'S VIEWS

        12  WERE WHEN HE WAS HAVING THIS ARTICLE--OR THIS INTERVIEW

        13  BECAUSE, AS I SAID, I WASN'T THERE FOR THE INTERVIEW.

        14  WHAT I BELIEVE IS HAPPENING HERE IS MR. GATES WAS REACTING

        15  TO A TREMENDOUS AMOUNT OF INDUSTRY HYPE TO THE--THAT

        16  NETSCAPE WAS GOING TO BASICALLY TAKE OVER THE WORLD, AND

        17  WHAT HE'S POINTING OUT HERE IS THAT MICROSOFT HAS A

        18  BUSINESS MODEL THAT WORKS, WHICH IS SELLING OPERATING

        19  SYSTEMS.  AND IF INTERNET FEATURES ARE BUILT INTO THOSE

        20  OPERATING SYSTEMS, THEN OUR BUSINESS MODEL CONTINUES TO

        21  WORK.

        22           AND HE'S ALSO POINTING OUT THAT NETSCAPE IS GOING

        23  TO HAVE TO HAVE VALUE-ADDED SOFTWARE IN ADDITION TO BASIC

        24  INTERNET SOFTWARE BECAUSE ALL OPERATING SYSTEM VENDORS,

        25  INCLUDING MICROSOFT, WERE INCLUDING INTERNET SOFTWARE IN
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         1  THEIR OPERATING SYSTEMS.

         2  Q.   HAVE YOU FINISHED?

         3  A.   YES.

         4  Q.   DO YOU CONSIDER THIS TO BE WORDS TO THE SAME EFFECT

         5  AS MICROSOFT IS GOING TO CUT OFF NETSCAPE'S AIR SUPPLY?

         6  A.   NO, I DON'T.

         7  Q.   DO YOU UNDERSTAND THAT IN ADDITION TO SAYING THAT

         8  MICROSOFT'S BUSINESS MODEL WORKS, MR. GATES IS ALSO SAYING

         9  THAT NETSCAPE'S BUSINESS MODEL DOES NOT WORK?

        10  A.   NO.  WHAT HE'S POINTING OUT HERE THAT YOU CAN'T HAVE

        11  A BUSINESS WHICH IS PREDICATED UPON JUST SELLING SOFTWARE

        12  THAT IS UNDIFFERENTIATED.  IN THE SITUATION WHERE MANY OF

        13  YOUR COMPETITORS, NOT JUST MICROSOFT, BUT ALL OPERATING

        14  SYSTEM VENDORS WERE GIVING AWAY BASIC INTERNET SOFTWARE,

        15  THEN THEY WOULD NEED TO HAVE SOME REASON FOR COMMANDING

        16  CUSTOMER VALUE.

        17  Q.   MR. GATES DOESN'T SAY UNDIFFERENTIATED.  HE SAYS

        18  FREE; RIGHT, SIR?  HE SAYS, "OUR BUSINESS MODEL WORKS,

        19  EVEN IF ALL INTERNET SOFTWARE IS FREE.  WE ARE STILL

        20  SELLING OPERATING SYSTEMS.  WHAT DOES NETSCAPE'S BUSINESS

        21  MODEL LOOK LIKE IF THAT HAPPENS?  NOT VERY GOOD."  THAT'S

        22  WHAT HE ACTUALLY SAYS; RIGHT?

        23  A.   THAT'S WHAT HE SAID HERE, AND WHAT I'M TRYING TO DO

        24  HERE IS POINT OUT WHAT I UNDERSTOOD HIM TO MEAN HERE.

        25  Q.   DID YOU EVER TALK TO HIM ABOUT THIS?
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         1  A.   I DID NOT.

         2           MR. BOIES:  YOUR HONOR, THIS WOULD BE A

         3  CONVENIENT TIME.

         4           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  10:00 TOMORROW MORNING.

         5           (WHEREUPON, AT 4:31 P.M., THE HEARING WAS

         6  ADJOURNED UNTIL 10:00 A.M., THE FOLLOWING DAY.)

         7

         8

         9

        10

        11

        12

        13

        14

        15

        16

        17

        18

        19

        20

        21

        22

        23

        24

        25

                                                           82

         1                   CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

         2

         3           I, DAVID A. KASDAN, RMR, COURT REPORTER, DO

         4  HEREBY TESTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROCEEDINGS WERE

         5  STENOGRAPHICALLY RECORDED BY ME AND THEREAFTER REDUCED TO

         6  TYPEWRITTEN FORM BY COMPUTER-ASSISTED TRANSCRIPTION UNDER

         7  MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; AND THAT THE FOREGOING

         8  TRANSCRIPT IS A TRUE RECORD AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE

         9  PROCEEDINGS.

        10           I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I AM NEITHER COUNSEL FOR,

        11  RELATED TO, NOR EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THE PARTIES TO THIS

        12  ACTION IN THIS PROCEEDING, NOR FINANCIALLY OR OTHERWISE

        13  INTERESTED IN THE OUTCOME OF THIS LITIGATION.

        14
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        15                          DAVID A. KASDAN
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